ILLINOIS VALLEY

COMMUNITY COLLEGE

815 North Orlando Smith Road
Oglesby, IL 61348-9692

Board Meeting
AGENDA

Thursday, February 8, 2024
Board Room
5:30 p.m.

If you are unable to attend this meeting, or if you have questions regarding
the agenda, please call the President’s office, 224-0402.




MISSION STATEMENT

Illinois Valley Community College is dedicated to creating opportunities
for students and our community by providing access to affordable,
high-quality higher education and life-long learning.

BOARD AGENDA ITEMS
January July
Tentative Budget
a. Resolution Approving Tentative Budget
February b. Authorization to Publish Notice of

Authorize Budget Preparation

Reduction in Force

Tuition and Fee Review

Three-year Financial Forecast

Tenure Recommendations

ICCTA Award Nominations
(Alumnus, Student Trustee, Ethical)

March
Reappointment of Non-tenured Faculty
President’s Evaluation
ICCTA Award Nominations
(FT/PT Faculty, Student Essay,
Business/Industry)

April
Board of Trustees Election (odd years)
Organization of Board (odd years)

Ma _

Buéget Adjustments

President’s Contract Review

Vice Presidents’ Contract Renewals

June

RAMP Reports

Authorization of Continued Payment for
Standard Operating Expenses

Semi-annual Review of Closed Session
Minutes

College Insurance

Public Hearing
Athletic Insurance

August
Budget
a. Public Hearing
b. Resolution to Adopt Budget

September

Protection, Health, and Safety Projects
Cash Farm Lease

Approval of College Calendar (even years)

October

Authorize Preparation of Levy
Audit Report

IVCC Foundation Update

November
Adopt Tentative Tax Levy
Student Fall/Employee Demographic Reports

December

Adopt Tax Levy

Schedule of Regular Meeting Dates and Times
Semi-annual Review of Closed Session Minutes

Tentative Board Committee Meetings

Audit Finance Committee: January, April, June, and November
Planning Committee: February and October

Facilities Committee: May and August

Closed Session Meeting Minutes Committee: June and December



ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
Board of Trustees Meeting
Thursday, February 8, 2024 — 5:30 p.m. — Board Room (C-307)

The meeting can be accessed by the public at link https://ivec-edu.zoom.us/j/87920654409
and meeting ID number 879 2065 4409. For dial-in, call 1 (312) 626-6799.

Public Comment

AGENDA
1. Call to Order
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Moment of Silence
4. Roll Call
5. Approval of Agenda
6.
7.

Consent Agenda Items - Anyone may remove an item from the consent item list by requesting
the chair to do so. Items removed will be discussed and voted upon immediately following
passage of the remaining consent items.

7.1  Approval of Minutes — January 18, 2024 Board Meeting (Pages 1-7)
7.2 Approval of Bills - $2,109,669.80
7.2.1 Education Fund - $1,332,427.89
7.2.2  Operations and Maintenance Fund - $225,011.48
7.2.3 Operations and Maintenance Fund (Restricted) - $432,001.16
7.2.4 Auxiliary Fund - $38,060.62
7.2.5 Restricted Fund - $20,194.21
7.2.6 Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund — $61,974.44
7.3 Treasurer’s Report (Pages 8-29)
7.3.1 Financial Highlights (Pages 9-10)
7.3.2 Balance Sheet (Pages 11-12)
7.3.3  Summary of FY24 Budget by Fund (Pages 13-20)
7.3.4 Budget to Actual by Budget Officers (Page 21)
7.3.5 Statement of Cash Flows (Page 22)
7.3.6 Investment Status Report (Pages 23-27)
7.3.7 Disbursements - $5,000 or more (Pages 28-29)

7.4 Personnel — Stipends for Pay Periods Ending January 13, 2024 and January 27,
2024 and Part-Time Faculty and Staff Appointments January 2024 (Pages 30-37)

8. President’s Report
9. Student Trustee’s Report



10.
1.

12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.

Committee Reports

Tenure Recommendations (Pages 38-58)

11.1 Theresa Molln, Welding Instructor (Pages 38-41)

11.2  Chrissy Boughton, Nursing Instructor (Pages 42-45)

11.3 Cathy Lenkaitis, Nursing Laboratory Instructor (Pages 46-49)
11.4 Samantha Whiteaker, Nursing Instructor (Pages 50-54)

11.5 Emily Morgan, Mathematics Instructor (Pages 55-58)
Resolution Designating the Fiscal Year (Pages 59-61)

Bid Request — Childcare Simulation Kit (Page 62)

Purchase Request — Commemorative Artwork (Pages 63-65)

Board Policy 02.07 Auditing Classes (Pages 66-67)

Board Policy 02.15 Honors Designation (Pages 68-69)

Board Policy 02.18 Program Approval (Page 70-71)

Items for Information (Pages 72-94)

18.1 Board Policy 01.14 Board Compensation (Page 72)

18.2 Board Policy 02.03 Academic Probation/Dismissal (Page 73)
18.3 Board Policy 02.09 Code of Conduct (Page 74)

18.4 Board Policy 02.10 Credit Hour (Page 75)

18.5 Board Policy 02.17 Pass/Fail Grading (Page 76)

18.6 Fall 2023 Graduation (Page 77)

18.7 Staff Appointment — Kaitlyn “Hunter” Hickey, Full-Time Helpdesk Support
Technician (Page 78)

18.8 ICCTA 2024 Distinguished Alumnus Award — John A. “Jack” Schibrowsky
(Page 79)

18.9 ICCTA 2024 Gary W. Davis Ethical Leadership Award — Fran Brolley (Page 80)

18.10 ICCTA 2024 Gigi Campbell Student Trustee Excellence Scholarship — Elizabeth
Boyles (Page 81)

18.11 ICCTA 2024 Pacesetter Award — Martha Hoffman (Page 82)
18.12 Audit Presentation (Page 83)

18.13 Financial Plan 2025-2027 (Page 84)

18.14 IGEN Grant Update (Page 85)

18.15 Sheridan Correctional Course Recommendation (Page 86)
18.16 CNC Vertical Mill (Page 87)

18.17 Saluki Step-Up Program (Pages 88-90)



19.
20.

21.
22.
23.

18.18 Memorandum of Understanding — Partnership for College Completion
(Pages 91-93)

18.19 Employee Separations Report (Page 94)
Trustee Comment

Closed Session — 1) the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or
dismissal of specific employees of the public body; 2) pending or imminent litigation; and
3) closed session minutes.

Approval — Closed Session Minutes
Other

Adjournment



JLLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
Board of Trustees

Minutes of Regular Meeting
January 18, 2024

The Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513 convened a regular
session at 6:00 p.m. on Thursday, January 18, 2024 in the Board Room (C307) at Illinois Valley
Community College.

Members Physically Present: Jay K. McCracken, Vice Chair
Angela M. Stevenson, Secretary
Amy L. Boyles
Rebecca Donna
Jane E. Goetz
Maureen O. Rebholz
Elizabeth G. Boyles, Student Trustee

Members Virtually Present:
Members Telephonically Present:
Members Absent: Everett Solon, Chair

Others Physically Present: Tracy Morris, President
Gary Roberts, Vice President for Academic Affairs
Mark Grzybowski, Vice President for Student Services
Kathy Ross, Vice President for Business Services and Finance
Mary Beth Herron, Director of Human Resources
Walt Zukowski, Attorney

Others Virtually Present:

MOMENT OF SILENCE

There was a moment of silence to remember John Paul Tomaska Jr. of Carlinville, father of former
Trustee Melissa Olivero; John Lee Lundahl of Merrimac, Wisconsin, husband of former IVCC
employee and Trustee Lori Scroggs; Diana Panizzi of Spring Valley, who worked in the IVCC
Registration and Records office for 20 years; and Josh Turner of Tonica.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Dr. Donna to approve the agenda.

Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” — Ms. Boyles. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” — Ms. Stevenson, Dr.
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Dr. Donna, and Mr. McCracken. “Nay” — none. Motion carried.

PUBLIC COMMENT
None

AGRICULTURE BUILDING UPDATE
Kathy Ross, Vice President for Business Services and Finance, updated the Board on the
Agricultural Education Center Project. Kathy noted our partners on this project are Demonica

EJS AMS



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting
January 18, 2024
Page 2

Kemper Architects (DKA) and Chamlin and Associates, Inc. The presentation included a site
drawing of the building. Kathy noted the building will have views of the surrounding fields and
will include a drop-off location for buses. A floor plan with the location of classroomylabs,
common areas, facilities/support, and office/conference areas was shown. Architectural renderings
of the outside views of each side of the building and courtyard, inside views of the lobby,
innovation lab, conference room, classroom, lab space, student lounge, and donor wall were
highlighted. The building will include a space for future growth. The current project timeline and
the cost estimation/funding sources were reviewed.

Trustee Goetz entered the meeting at 6:17 p.m.

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
It was moved by Dr. Rebholz and seconded by Dr. Boyles to approve the consent agenda, as

presented.

Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” — Ms. Boyles. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” — Ms. Stevenson, Dr.
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, and Mr. McCracken. “Nay” — none. Motion carried.
The following items were approved in the consent agenda:

Approval of Minutes — December 6, 2023 Planning Committee Meeting; December 7, 2023 Closed
Session Minutes Review Committee Meeting; and December 14, 2023 Decennial Committee
Meeting and Board Meeting.

Approval of Bills - $1,741,598.18

Education Fund - $869,534.35; Operations and Maintenance Fund - $89,198.89; Operations and
Maintenance (Restricted Fund) - $367,653.96; Auxiliary Fund - $354,577.21; Restricted Fund -
$13,320.83; and Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund - $47,312.94.

Treasurer’s Report

Personnel
Approved stipends for pay periods ending December 2, 2023, December 16, 2023, and December

30, 2023, and Part-Time Faculty and Staff Appointments December 2023,

PRESIDENT’S REPORT

Dr. Morris stated the holiday breakfast basket raffle raised $1,800 for the Foundation’s Student
Emergency Fund with a total of 35 baskets donated by employees and departments. The Arbor
Management team provided a great breakfast.

The overall Athletic Department GPA for Fall 2023 was 3.10. Eagles Peak served 24 households
in December with 85 people in the households, including 19 children. YMCA Little Eagles was
slow in December and the schedule is set for the Spring semester. Eagles Peak received donations
of a chest freezer from Tom Ganiere and a refrigerator from Ronnie Uebel in memory of her
husband Bill Uebel. Crystal Credi has updated our licensing so that we can use the refrigerator and
freezer to better provide options for our students.

EJS AMS



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting
January 18, 2024
Page 3

Prior to the initial drop for non-payment date, there were 793 students on the list. The deadline
was extended to 1/3/24 and resulted in a total of 137 students being dropped for non-payment.
Kudos to the Cashier’s Office, Admissions and Records, Financial Aid, Special Populations and
Transition Specialist, Counseling, and Accounting for all their efforts. Kudos to Payroll,
Accounting, and Human Resources for their work over break and during snow days to update all
employee benefits, make adjustments to payroll benefits, and ensure payroll was processed. Kudos
to the Facilities team over break and on snow days who worked tirelessly to clean up our campus
and to the Marketing and Social Media team for getting out notifications in a timely manner on
snow days. Kudos to the team that planned the in-service and part-time faculty development day.
Thank you to everyone who donated to the drive for our local Veteran’s Home. A total of 517
items were collected.

Events and happenings highlights include classes have begun with Cocoa Crawls held around
campus and Project Success had a soup and chili bar for their students. Foundation Scholarship
applications are available to high school seniors, current IVCC students and anyone planning to
enroll at IVCC in Fall 2024. The application deadline is February 8 and scholarships range in value
from $500 to $4500. Dental clinics start on January 26™. As part of the 100 anniversary events,
a “Souper” Bowl drive for canned soup for Eagles Peak will be held on February 9. Nursing
applications, including LPN to RN Bridge, are due on March 1%. CETLA will move into D201 in
February. The 25% Annual Softball Clinic will take place on February 17" and 18" in the gym.

Monthly updates include an enrollment update that showed across the board increases of 8.06% in
headcount and 2.69% in credit hours compared to Spring 2023. Enrollment numbers showed an
increase in credit hours for dual credit, IBEW, online blended, and virtual class meeting courses.
There were decreases in traditional credit hours, Ottawa Center hours, online web hours, and online
dual credit hours. The Facility Master Plan Update indicated a summary was received from DKA
and share with the Steering Committee and Operations Committee. Next steps are to determine
planning objectives and discuss institutional priorities to inform the concept alternatives so DKA
can build the first draft of the plan. Finally, the Decennial Committee draft plan was sent to the
committee along with a survey. The final meeting will be held in late February or early March to
complete the report.

STUDENT TRUSTEE’S REPORT

Ms. Boyles mentioned the impressive athletic GPAs highlighted by Dr. Morris. Men’s basketball
has a record of 6-10 and are playing a home game tonight with a lot of games remaining in their
season. Softball practice began last Thursday and will kick off the season in Florida, an annual,
fully fundraised trip. The 25" Annual Softball Clinic will be held on February 17 and 18.
Registrations forms are available on the website or by calling the Athletic Office. Baseball held its
first practice the first week of January and will start their season over spring break in Myrtle Beach,
which is also an annual fundraised trip. The golf team are getting together for group workouts and
are using local simulators. The Student Government Association is reevaluating meeting times for
this semester. More Student Government Association information will be shared next month.
Student Government Association Secretary, Riker Fesperman, is working to get the Gay/Straight
Alliance more involved with the Student Government Association. A meeting is scheduled next
week so more information to come. Ms. Boyles will be joining the Student Success Committee

EJS AMS



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting
January 18, 2024
Page 4

this semester while Drew Knipper is studying abroad in Spain. The first committee meeting is set
for next Wednesday. Students are saying they are ready to be back at school.

COMMITTEE REPORTS
Ms. Goetz noted the Planning Committee minutes are including the Board book. Dr. Morris has
been very organized in our reviews of policies, and it is appreciated.

BOARD POLICY 01.06 CORE VALUES, VISION, MISSION, PURPOSES, PRINCIPLES,

AND GOALS
It was moved by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to approve Board Policy 01.06, as

presented.
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” — Ms. Boyles. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” — Ms. Stevenson, Dr.
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, and Mr. McCracken. “Nay” — none. Motion carried.

BOARD POLICY 01.09 ELECTION OF OFFICERS
It was moved by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to approve Board Policy 01.09, as

presented.
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” — Ms. Boyles. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” — Ms. Stevenson, Dr.
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, and Mr. McCracken. “Nay” — none. Motion carried.

BOARD POLICY 01.11 DUTIES OF THE VICE CHAIR

It was moved by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to approve Board Policy 01.11, as
presented.

Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” — Ms. Boyles. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” — Ms. Stevenson, Dr.
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, and Mr. McCracken. “Nay” — none. Motion carried.

BOARD POLICY 02.05 ACCREDITATION

It was moved by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Dr. Boyles to approve Board Policy 02.05, as
presented.

Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” — Ms. Boyles. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” — Ms. Stevenson, Dr.
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, and Mr. McCracken. “Nay” — none. Motion carried.

BOARD POLICY 02.11 DEGREES AND CERTIFICATES

It was moved by Dr. Donna and seconded by Ms. Goetz to approve Board Policy 02.11, as
presented.

Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” — Ms. Boyles. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” — Ms. Stevenson, Dr.
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, and Mr. McCracken. “Nay” — none. Motion carried.

BOARD POLICY 02.25 TUITION AND FEES

It was moved by Dr. Rebholz and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to approve Board Policy 02.25, as
presented.

Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” — Ms. Boyles. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” — Ms. Stevenson, Dr.
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, and Mr. McCracken. “Nay” — none. Motion carried.

EJS AMS



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting
January 18, 2024
Page §

RESOLUTION FOR REVISED USE OF BOND FUNDS

It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to adopt the resolution as presented
to authorize a portion of the proceeds of the Debt Certificates, Series 2011 to assist financing the
cost of building the Agricultural Education Center.

Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” — Ms. Boyles. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” — Ms. Stevenson, Dr.
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, and Mr. McCracken. “Nay” — none. Motion carried.

STAFF RESIGNATION - PATRICE HESS, DIRECTOR OF LEARNING RESOURCES
It was moved by Dr. Boyles and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to accept, with regret the resignation of
Dr. Patrice Hess, Director of Learning Resources, effective December 31, 2023.

Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” — Ms. Boyles. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” — Ms. Stevenson, Dr.
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, and Mr. McCracken. “Nay” — none. Motion carried.

STAFF RESIGNATION - GARY ROBERTS, VICE PRESIDENT FOR ACADEMIC
AFFAIRS

It was moved by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Dr. Donna to accept, with regret the resignation of
Dr. Gary Roberts, Vice President for Academic Affairs, effective March 1, 2024.

Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” — Ms. Boyles. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” — Ms. Stevenson, Dr.
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, and Mr. McCracken. “Nay” — none. Motion carried.

STAFF RESIGNATION - SHANE LANGE, DEAN OF WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT
It was moved by Dr. Rebholz and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to accept, with regret the resignation
of Dr. Shane Lange, Dean of Workforce Development, effective June 30, 2024.

Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” — Ms. Boyles. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” — Ms. Stevenson, Dr.
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, and Mr. McCracken. “Nay” — none. Motion carried.

STAFF APPOINTMENT - ISAMAR TAYLOR, DIRECTOR OF FINANCIAL AID

It was moved by Dr. Rebholz and seconded by Dr. Boyles to approve the appointment of Isamar
Taylor as Director of Financial Aid at an annualized salary of $71,500, effective January 22, 2024.
Ms. Taylor expressed her thanks for the opportunity, and she is honored and excited to be the next
Director of Financial Aid.

Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” — Ms. Boyles. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” — Ms. Stevenson, Dr.
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, and Mr. McCracken. “Nay” — none. Motion carried.

REVISED BOARD MEETING DATE - SEPTEMBER 2024

It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Ms. Goetz to approve the updated CY 24 meeting
dates and times, as presented. All meetings will take place at the designated time in Room C-307
(the Board Room) on the campus of Illinois Valley Community College, 815 North Orlando Smith
Road, Oglesby, Illinois.

Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” — Ms. Boyles. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” — Ms. Stevenson, Dr.
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, and Mr. McCracken. “Nay” — none. Motion carried.
Dr. Morris noted the Audit Finance Committee will meet on February 8, 2024 from 4:00-5:00 p.m.
Tenure presentations will begin at 4:30 p.m. so those Trustees not attending the Audit/Finance
Committee meeting can come early for the tenure event.

EJS AMS



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting
January 18, 2024
Page 6

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION

Mt. McCracken pointed out the information items on pages 69-87 of the Board book.

Dr. Boyles stated she is impressed with the Athletic Department GPAs. She is pleased to see that
while they are here to play sports, they are serious about being students first. Overall, they did very
well last semester.

TRUSTEE COMMENT
None

CLOSED SESSION

Mr. McCracken requested a motion and a roll call vote at 6:56 p.m. to enter into a closed session
to discuss: 1) the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal
of specific employees of the public body; 2) pending or imminent litigation; and 3) closed session
minutes.

It was moved by Dr. Donna and seconded by Ms. Goetz to enter into a closed session.

Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” — Ms. Boyles. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” — Ms. Stevenson, Dr.
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, and Mr. McCracken. “Nay” — none. Motion carried.
The Board entered closed session at 7:01 p.m.

It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to return to the regular meeting.
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” — Ms. Boyles. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” — Ms. Stevenson, Dr.
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, and Mr. McCracken. “Nay” — none. Motion carried.
The regular meeting resumed at 7:33 p.m.

POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF EMPLOYEE RETIREMENTS - RETIREMENT PLANNING
PROGRAM
It was moved by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to approve those employees requesting
to participate in the Retirement Planning Program, as listed and who submitted a request by the
December 31, 2023 deadline as follows:
Full-Time Faculty — Elizabeth (Betsy) Klopcic, Vince Brolley, and LeeAnn Johnson.
Full-Time Administrative and Support Staff — Gary Talsky, Bonnie Jasiek, Cynthia Lock,
Jeannette Phalen, Lauren Catalina, Angela Dunlap, and Jill Hejl.
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” — Ms. Boyles. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” — Ms. Stevenson, Dr.
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, and Mr. McCracken. “Nay” — none. Motion carried.

CLOSED SESSION MINUTES

It was moved by Dr. Boyles and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to approve and retain the closed
session minutes of the December 7, 2023 Closed Session Minutes Review Committee Meeting
and the December 14, 2023 Board Meeting.

Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” — Ms. Boyles. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” — Ms. Stevenson, Dr.
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, and Mr. McCracken. “Nay” — none. Motion carried.

OTHER
Dr. Morris noted inside back cover of the Board book will be updated with the new mission, vision,

and core values. We will be getting the word out to the campus that they were approved and she
is excited about the next steps in the strategic plan with more updates next month.

EJS AMS



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting
January 18, 2024
Page 7

ADJOURNMENT
Mr. McCracken declared the meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m.

Everett J. Solon, Board Chair

Angela M. Stevenson, Secretary

EJS AMS



ILLINOIS
VALLEY

COMMUNITY
COLLEGE

DISTRICTNO.513

TREASURER'S REPORT

January 2024

Kathy Ross
V.P. for Business Services and Finance/Treasurer

Eric Johnson
Controller



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS - January 2024

Revenues

As of January 26, Spring 2024 credit hours are 20,886 or 1.86 percent more than Spring 2023.
Total credit hours are 47,073 or 1.2 percent greater than the total FY2024 budgeted credit hours
of 46,532.

Total tax collections as of January 31 are $14,239,224 of the $14,329,964 levy.

As reported in the August Financial Highlights, IDOR has posted that the anticipated adjustments
to the Corporate Personal Property Replacement Tax will be made to the October 2023, January
2024, April 2024, May 2024 and June 2024 disbursements. Year to date comparison is
$1,799,962, or 73 percent of FY2023 year to date payments of $2,465,851.

ICCB released the FY2024 CTE allocations in October. IVCC’s allocation will be $233,038. This is
$6,038 more than the $227,000 FY2024 budget. We received the first half, $116,519 in
November.

We continue to try to maximize Investment income and transfer (or hold) to higher percentage
investment accounts such as IL Funds and ISDLAF. Investment income as of January 31 is
$856,849 or more than double the budgeted amount of $387,700.

Expenses

Overall, expenses are running at 54.7 percent of budget seven months into the fiscal year. The
H.S.A. contributions were paid in January and faculty overload will occur in February.

Facilities includes $115,500 annual rent for the Ottawa Center.

Information Technologies running at 65.5 percent; however, several annual software support
renewals are paid in July, including Ellucian Colleague for $429,971.

ECACE Early Childhood Grant is running over the budgeted amount of $219,684. Total allocation
awarded is now $377,170. This will be the last year of the grant.

Financial Aid running at 63.4 percent; Fall disbursement of financial aid was in September and
Spring disbursement of financial aid will be in February.

Bookstore running at 219.8 percent; this is the first full fiscal year with books outsourced
through e-Campus. While expenses are running higher than expected, revenues are also running
higher than expected. As of January 31, net profit is $64k.

Protection, Health & Safety Projects

The D201 project is in substantial completion. The elevator was installed in December with the
inspection set for the first week in January 2024. We are hoping CETLA can finally occupy the
space in early February 2024. The rest of the technology for the space may take until April 2024.
The exterior sealing project is progressing nicely; substantial completion date was October 25,
2023. A punch list item was approved. Final completion date was scheduled for December 13,
2023 but had to be postponed. As of January 31, we are still awaiting a final completion date.
This is a CDB funded project.

The lighting and security upgrades are progressing nicely. The lots were closed beginning on
December 13" through the winter break. The lighting portion of the project was completed and
lots were re-opened prior to the campus re-opening on January 2, 2024. The security camera
portion of the project is set to begin. The projected schedule has a substantial completion date
of February 2, 2024.

The salt shed site preparation, demolition and installation of storm water utilities has been
completed. The footings for the foundation have been poured. The pre-engineered fabricated



structure is due to arrive in early December. The current schedule has a substantial completion
date of May 6, 2024.

Other Building and Grant Work

* Design work is complete for the Agricultural Educational Center. The Board of Trustees will be
provided an update at the January 18, 2024 meeting with both exterior and interior
architectural renderings. We are continuing to work through the permit and annexation
paperwork with the City of Oglesby. We are planning for a February 5, 2024 Out for Bid and an
April 1, 2024 ground-breaking. We are currently looking at a substantial completion date of
June 2025 and a final completion date/occupancy of early August 2025.

* Farm Tiling project is complete. College farm manager will till the ground in the spring prior to
the releasing the fields to the tenant.

e A concept package for the Indigenous People Display was received during winter break. We are
meeting in February to discuss the concept prior to design phase of this project.

* Aninformational meeting for the Distance Learning Grant with all participating schools was held
in mid-January to share information on all participating schools, the equipment and
functionality, the match funding, and other key information. We are waiting on the Release of
Funds Letter to begin the process.

10



YSO'SEPTET S 98E'66VTT 601°05865 1516981 S  7I8'659 S TIT'LL8 S 969't€6E9T S LTY'SsTov S
£69TTTTT €69°CTTCT - - - - - =
96£'96865 - 601°058'65 - L8990 - - -
£69'98¢ £69°98€ - - - - - -
L¥9'T9T - - - - 795°E 088101 S0Z°LS
£6980T - - - L69'80T - - -
906°LLT 906°LLT - - - -
875'861°S - - 85S'LT 00005T - 8€8'T TET'6CE'S

orT'oLT'T

veL'zeL
€95'898'T - - - £9L'6ET . - 66L'8TLT
LTV'E8 - - o) ¥4 >¥4 - - L12'09 -
09EVZEYT - - - £08'860°C £8§'STTTT
A AAN T4 - 6VSTLL - ZET'299 7618659 €56'P¥1'ST
Trv'681°6 - - 877’648 S vL9YIT S  89¥'TIT S 991°4£59 S 906°9YET S

(Auo 192Q $1955Y Aualy asudiaul ANNIBS BNuaAly |e12uan
WnpuUeIoW?I|A) wia1-3uol paxi4 pue 1snaj, 9a lenads
(12018 {e1au3n [[EDED)
sdnoJo Junody sadAy pung sadAj puny s3dAL spun4 [ejuswuIaA0D
Asennpiyq Aejaudoig
paypneun
¥20Z ‘1€ Menuer

sdnoag Junoay pue sadAL pung ||y
193YS dUejeg pauiquo)
€15 "ON 1211151Q 283))0) Auunwwo) Asjjen siou)|

SMOJJINO PALIFIP pue S)ISSE [e301

193p 311321 0}
papiaoad 3q o1 Junowy
puny 20195 198Q
ul 9|gejieA. Junowy
SNQSP 434310

13U - S}asse paxi4
SMOBINQ paLIdya(d
51955€ J3Y10

SB1I0JUBAUI 210)54009
sdnoJs juapnis wouy/o) snq
spuny Jayjo woJj ang

puapIAIg DHID
asea
$39) pue uoKINj,
SWIE|D [EIUSWUIIA0Y
soxe| Ajiadoad
sa|qenaday

SjuawWlssAl]
sjudjeainba ysed pue yse)
SHQ3Q 1BY10 pue s1assy

11



€SO'SEV'TET  §  98E'66VCT S 601°05865 S 2SY'698'T S 7Z8'699 79T'LL8 969'€6€°9T LTY'S8T'0V
0LV T¥9'TE - - 6€Y'9LS - - 1£0°990°C€
291448 - - - 29T°LL8 - -
TT6LITTT - - - - - TT6LITTT -
60T'05865 - 60105865 - - - - -
T6€°LV6'LT 98€'667'CT - ISr'698°T €8E'E8 - SLL'SLT's 96£612°8
OPO'brEy ov0'vreE'y - - - - - -
ZEVOET'S TEV'OET'S - - - - - -
VELT6T - - - - - - YELTET
7SE'89 - - - 8/£°0S - - VLELT
£86'79T'L = - - - - 800°0SS'T SL6'YT9'S
96£°ZT S9Z'TT - - TET - - -
86 86 - - - - - -
£L8°6T 185°CT - €TE'LT - - -
82€'9CT - . - - - 8TE'9LT
825'861'S - . 65198'T - - 999'7£9°E 897
STE - - - STE
¥86'GLT - - - - 998'8T 8TTLST
€8L'796'T - - - TSS'ST TEEL 006'TV6'T
SS'8ET - - 158 - 20679 98299
{Ajuo wgag 5)assy AoualSy asudiauy NNIDS INUBAIY |esauan
wnpueloWwap) wi3-uo paxid pue ysnaj 92a |enads
|eloL jesauan [IEDET]
sdnosg Junoddy sadA] puny sadA L pung sadA] spung jJejusawiuianog
Asednpiy Aseyaudoug
paypneun
¥20z ‘1€ Atenuer

sdnoJo Junoddy pue sadA) pung v
199Yys Iduejeg pauiquio)

£TS “ON 12111s1d 9831107 Anunwwio) A3j|eA stoury

uonisod 1au pue sanjIqe)) [e3oL

panasaun

92IAIDS 149P 40) panIaSIY
sasodind pa1oL1sal 10y paAISSAY

aouejeq puny

S]asSE Pax|} [e1auad ul JuAWISIAUL JON
53355V 19N /UORISO 19N

171101

199p W) Suo| §3d0

a3do

9|qeAladay asea]

sjueln

$394 pue uon]
saxe} Apadold
SMOJJUL paJlaje(d

a|qedeq asea fende)

1S2J31U) panJIdY

asea |eyde)-uoniogd Wwaun)
spsodap/sdnoJd Juspnis 03 ang

spuny Jay1o o3 ang

Ayadoud pawiepun
13430 1§ $31JDUaQ JUBWIDAIRI-1S0d
s5)1jouaq 1§ Salle|es panaoy

o|qeded syjunoay
sanuqen

12



LL0'0VP'OF S EPS'868'T S 8SETY S 9ETVIT'S $§  8ysQlt S EEV9SE S  8..'618 S vev'eTy's $  E€L8TSLvY S £98'60S'ST S +20z ‘7€ AMenuer saouejeq puny
661'S£6°0€ £29'€01T ZEE'TY 85T'790's #19'69 6CE'CrS TL7'958 84T°490°E SE9'690'Y Z0v'6T6'LT (1359) €202 ‘T Ainf sadue|eq puny
8L7'vo'6 0Z6'v6L 9Z0°T 8L6'6YT vE6'Sh (968°58T) £LOE'ET 90£'29¢ 8£7'C89 S9v°065'L sasn
Buipueuy J9Y10 pue sanipuIdxa
13A0 $331n0s SufdueUl JAYIO
pue SAINUIARY J0 {U21BP) $S30%3
- - - - - - - - - (sasn] sa04nos Bupueuld JaYIQ
v9°020'TZ 958'G5/ 000°ct 907‘T 067°TET'E 66L°€LTT Ly LTLT0C'T 092'056'T TPS'T9S°CT sainiipuadx3 [endy
8I6'P8Y'0E S 944°0S5'T  §  9TOWY $  v8TIST S €TTBLTE S VOEL80'T  §  8LL'Er § TTOY9S'T  §  866'CE9T S 900'7ST0T S anuzAdy |BNDY
{AMuo pung pung pung puny pung pung pung punj pung
wnpueIoWaA) WIS upny yse)y sasoding asudiauzg CEITNEIN papuIsay duUBUIIUIRA uoneanpg
jelo), 12 UORISIOId Suniom papLsay Aerjixny 1q3q dueuaueN ]
Aupgen g suonnes2dQ suonesado
pajpneurn

Y207 ‘TE Alenuel papusa SYIUOW UIAIS Y3 104

pung Aq sainypuadx3 °g SINUIARY HTOT JEIA {314 JO Alewiung
€1 "ON 121151 289107 Ajunuwiwo) A3j[eA sioulyy|

13



%SES 985°820°TT €07'006'S %VES $02'Z6T'TT 8E£9v6'S uonINNSY| [e30L
%00 - 662 %0°0 - T0€ Byo
%00 0001T 899°€6 %00 118'(8 69667 AejynQ |ende)
%T'LY 000°8S S6E°LT %8s 0006 TEL'ES sagiey) paxiy
%T'8L $65°69T 9E8°0E %1'ST ETL'BLT 208y SunIda 13 30UBIRU)
%8k 68€E°TSY 620°L12 %6'8T 821°96S £00'2LT sayddng 1g sje1en
%U'ES [7A41149 £98°€9 %8s BLYLT 00299 SIIAIDS jENIRIHUQ)
%TV9 90£'VER'T 6sSL'LLT'T %U°69 TET°089'T 89€°091T suyeusg sakodws
%8'1S [49 ¢:14} $ PSE'68T'Y %L'TS 80Z'EVY'S $ 6SL9pt'Y salsejeg
uoiInsasuj
SIUNLIANIAXT ANN NOLLYINAI
%LE6 00v'obZ'TZ  $ €25°0T6°6T § %888 v65'269'7 § 900°2ST0Z S 3INNIAIY ANND NOLLYINAI TYLOL
%S'60T TIY'S6E TI6'ZEY %0PTT ¥E6'£9S TEELYY $92UN0S J3YIQ [EI0L
%TELT TOETST TLT'292 %9°€91 ¥88'T1E 9zZE0TS 1S324N0S JAYIO
%00L 050tz 'Lt %SES 050°95Z 900°2€1 anuaasy 3A3S AIqng
1$32JN0S JPUI0
%2°00T 001'66v°9 TH9'SYS9 %6°96 S60'EE0°L £96'718'9 $334 pue uoRINg (3oL
%0'601T 006°289 £L8'6YL %916 SIE'Ers 962 TLL 5994
%L66 00Z'tI8’s 89L'S6L'S %9'L6 082'68T‘9 £99°T40'9 uomny
15994 pue UoilIn] juspnis
%0°0 §z8'L - %6'E 056'L ote JUSWUIAAOD |es3pay [e10L
%00 S78'L - %6'E 0S6L ore 5994 aAleNsIWPY 113d
JUBWIUIDACY) e3P
%E'19 S£5'890C £82'992'T %8'v9 0SLTIT'T t0E'89E T JUAWLIIA0D JUBLIAJEIS 830]
z s - - Byio
%b'1S 005022 TIELL %E'1S 000°222 6159TT R eJNUIIOS UONEINP] {23IUYIDL/I9Bse)
%E'8S 000°0S £91°62 %9'9S 00528 L9T1°62 ueig uopezienby
%9'T9 SL0'86L'T S0LSTT'T %L'99 052°7€8T 819727t 1UR19 INCH UP313 €D
THIBWUIBAQE) 3RS
%056 T68Y'SLT'TT £89€99'TT %EL8 $98'926'CT L60'ECETT JUBLILIBA0D) |20 [R30L
%9°69 000'0St 6ET'ETE %181 0000yt 2€9'TIT suenNGLIsiq SudueLl JUBWRLOU Xe L
%E'TE 00L't62'C €£6'S60T %E"95 0SZ'9TLT 896'675T xe| uawade|day Aladold [euosiad 33es0ds0)
%L'L6 68L'085'6 $ SLS'PST6 S %96 ST9'078'6 $ 86Y'1856 S SAXE L JU3.LIN)
:S2NOS JUIWUISAOD |20
SINNIAIY ANNA NOILYINAI
%E8S €202A4 €20T/TE/T %E'8S YZ0TAS veoz/te/t
983png/lenioy 123png |enuuy 193png/jenpy 103png |enuuy
paypneun

202 ‘1€ Alenuer papua SYUOW UBA3S 33 Jo4
punj Aq saunyipuady3y '3 SONUIABY HZOT 1e3A [IS1] 0 Atetuwing
€15 "ON 113510 2837100 Ayunwiwio) AdjjeA sjoujil

14



%00 {Tvv'267) s - S %00 (2Lv'687) $ - $
%8'¥S 656'8¥6°07  $ O0BLTLY'TT & %T9S TeTr'sov'ze § TYSTeSTT $
%Z0TL 000869 SZE'GIL %E60T 00008 959°7/8
%661 LITY99'Y €TH'STE'T %8'85 00519Z'S TZ¥'S60'E
%00 €80°T29 - %0°0 905°ZST -
%06 {poE"TT) 910 T %S°LT 00242 YIEY

000°s2T wUr'e %00 €228 -
%8'L9T STZOT - 186'LT %0°00T 067 S8ETL
%Z'9E 0LELY 8SEYT %8'1C ¥19°06 68L61
%9°601 6840 SLY'ELE %Z'L9 8YS‘66€ 10v'892
%S0V €16'T69 8r'08e %2'96 80T'LIT'T 906vL0T
%E 65 96€°£9L 8IT'sSY %599 91S°TPL 1898LY
%L'95 1ST1S0°T SSSE9TT %208 S66°0VP'T PEOLET'T
%T'S9 L18°9€9 T61'STY %6'£9 68LTTL £98°E8Y

- 65t'6 %00 - -

E - %00 -
%9'EL 056’y €b9'E %0'ET 008°LT 960t
%ePS 00€°SL 982°TY %5°5L 0s8'sL we'Ls
%6°tS 0C0'TIT 196'09 %ET6 000821 688'91T
%Y'0L 026501 6SS'PL %8'69 0L L0T 69T'SL
%E'99 LY9'6EE €8z'sze %109 66€'€8E L9082
%r0S ¥58°Z¥1'T 0v6'8L0'T %8'0% S0LISET 12£'660'T

- - %00 - 567
%667 SOSEY 799'8 %12 29598 ££8'9
%6°05 SIZ'E6 EY'LY %8'87 06£°901T 809°0¢€
%L°0t z0L'9Y 90061 %5°S¢E £59'8L 02627
%b'65 889'TEY T0Y'9ST %9°2S 9Zr'6IY 06L°022
%6'8t prL'Les't SEV'LYVL %18y 0£9°069°T TLTETR
%E'SS S85'8LL'T 002786 %6 256802 ZHT'EE0'T

- - %00 = -

- - %00 S6Y've -
%L 6E St'9z 00501 10/nma¥ - 00E'ST
%102 5881 06L°E %6°6T 560°0Z 066'€
%0'8Y 0z9°9ve 80¥'811T %V'8E S88°TLZ 88107
%28t LLT'sET 1’59 %S'St 066621 85008
%9'vL 768'681 6V9°TPT %T6¥ SL6'9VT [ A4
%b'SS 9L¥'19T'T 80Tev9 %b'TS PIFOSE'T $97'80L
%E'8S £20ZA4 €20Z/TE/T %E'8S ¥Z0TAd +202/1€/1T
123png/jenpy 33png [enuuy w@ipng/iendy 199png |enuuy

paypneun

20T ‘TE AenUEl PAapPUB SYIUOW UBAIS Y3 404
pung Ag sanjipuadxg '3 SONUIAIY YEOT JB3A [2ISIY JO Aurwwng
£TS "ON LIS 388107 Auniuwo) AajjeA stouy]y

13N - SYFISNVEL ANNIYILENI

SIUNLIANIHXI ONN4 NOLLYINGS TvI0L

SIBAEAN PUE sjuesD ‘sdiysiejoyas

1oddng [euonnyisuj 2301

A2u28ujuo) 10J UOISIACIG
Byi0
Aepno jeyde)
ssnnn
Sunaap 1§ 20udIBJU0)
salddng g sjel23e N
$3DIAIDS [ENIIRIUOD
spjauag asAojdw3
sajejes

:poddng jeuocimisul

uoReINp3 SUINURU0)/SBIIAISS J1|qnd jeI0L
BYo

Bunoa 1§ aduaseu0)
sa|ddng g sjelsae
S21AIS |EMIRIUDD)
s)jouag avAojdw3
sauejes
:uoneanp3 Suinupuo)/sediaias dlignd

SADIAIDS JUSPNIS (8301
s3nIN

JupdN B BIUBIBJUCD
sa3)1ddng 3 sjelale
S31AJ3S [BNYIRIIUCDH
syyauag 2akojdw3
sauejes

1S32UAIIS JUBPMIS

uoddng ouuapedy [e104
FEInT]
Aeino jende)
sanunN
Jupsd 1 SIUAIBJUOY
saiddng 13 sjeuaie |y
SAIIAIDS [BNIIRIIUOD
syyauag ashojdw3
sauees

:poddns Juapedy

15



%579 £S¥°226'C $ 8060981 S %179 LS9'EPT'E S 09£'0S6°T $
%8°65 £26'S0T 08E'E9 %889 ¥TS'E0T 692'TL

- - 002 -
%0°001 66T'Y 66Ty 10/A1Q# - 990t
%619 0SL'€ £EV'T %BEY 80€'S 9zE'T
%6°96 0oL’z S19'T %201 00£°C £LL°T
%E V9 68Ty 9952 %099 61Ty £61°2T
%L°0S ¥BE‘ZS £95°9Z %L'69 £80'05 TI6'FE
%9'79 925148 87S'L6LT %8'19 EHT0V0'E 6%'648'T
%00 (00z'ss) - o/nia# - -
%00 00005 - %0°0 €L5'€T -
%L'SY 000°91Z SbL'86 %0°9vT 000'€6T 8t£'187
%568 055629 ¥82'85S %Y 00608L T8L'0EE
%IVIT 00€'2LT 68Y'L6T %8'TTL 00T'ELT §8S°CTZ
%E'S 00TT 00T %L 0E 00E'T 66€
%9'SE 05£'59¢ EV9'Y6 %8'8t 052062 PEITHT
%08 006612 S95'19 %T'8E 00L°8LT 702’89
%0¥9 092°0v€E S00'8T %Y'L9 €5E'0EE 979772
BLYS 99/'8€0°T 16989 %U'8S £96'890°T L1S'129
%206 ESYLLE'T $ E€IP'¥89'7 S %ges LS9'EVT'E $ 866'7€9'C $
%L6L 000'8€T LEO'OTT %T'€8 000°58T 0zLeST
%S'18 000°€ ovt'z %6°LT 000'S £68
%L E0E 000°ST 955G %Z'v9T 000's9 90£'90T
%L'TS 000°0ZT SE079 %10V 000STT (4441
%9101 00€'0St 9LY'LSY %E'66 799°0SE 79€'8PE
%9101 00£°0SY 9ISt %E66 799°0SE Z9E'8E
%TE9 620'L0€E STR'E6T %99 TEL'STE LSETTT
%TE9 620°L0€ ST8'E6T %499 TET'BIE L5ETIT
%bT6 $21'780'T S80'€T6'T %8'€8 £98'682'7 655°6T6'T
%485 0000t 961'Z8 %95 000'sZT ¥vS0L
%Y'16 006'v0Y 8£8'69€ %S6F 896'vs v66'692
%2°S6 YTULEST S TIO'TLY'T S %SL6 S68'619'T $ TZO'6L8'T $
%E'8S €202Ad £20Z/1E/T %E'8S v20ZAd vZ0Z/TE/T
193png/lenoy 193png |enuuy 123png/lenpy 303png jenuuy

paupneun

Z0Z ‘T€ Alenuer papus SyILoW UIAIS Y} 103
pung Aq saunjjpuadxy g sanuandy pZoz 4894 [BIS]4 JO Azewwns
€TS "ON 321351@ 933]{0D Ayunwuwo) AajjeA siouyi

STYNLIANIINI IINVNILNIVIN B SNOILVYIJO TVIOL

1oddng [euonnigsu) |exoy

J0
saszey) pang
sayddng g sielsiepy
S3IIAIDS [ENYIR1IUOD
syjouag ashojdwz
sauejes

:poddng feuonnsuj

jue(d §O 3dueUIUIRN @ SuonesadO |10}

12y0

AduaBuiuo) 1oy UoISIACLg

Aepng |euded

saBn

sadieyd paxtd

Bugaa 13 32Ua1U0D

saddns g sjeusiey

SDIIAIBS [eNIIRIU0D

BITENEEEEVLITE]

sayefes
:Juejd 40 daueudlURY R suohessdo
STUNLIANIIXI ANNS IDNYNILNIVIAL B SNOILYEILO

SINNIATY TIINVNILNIVN 2 SNOLLVEIIO TV.L0L

5324N08 JAYI0 [I0L
RYO
2NUIABY JUBWISIAL]
INudARY sonydey
1$23UN0S YO

$394 pue uoiny (@301
uoning
$334 pue uoINng JUIPNIS

JUBWIUIDAOL) 31835 [B10L
luelg InOH P 801
SJUBWHIRAOD) JBIS

JUIWUIIACY 8507 |BI0L
SjuUaWRsINGs1g Suldueul JUWAIIU| XB L
xe} Juswade|day Apadold jeuosiad sesodio)
saxe] u2un)
1S32JN0S JUBWUIAOD) |EICT
SINNIATY ANNS IDNVNILINIVIA B SNOILVYIJO

16



%00 SS8'8YE s - $ %00 6ET'99€ s - $ 13N - SHIASNYML ONNFHALNI SISIHAHALIND ANVIIXNY
%9°'69 08¥'S59°T $ 0€8'TSIT S %LSIT 784001 S BBL'ELTT $ SIUNLIANIAX3I SISINdYILNT AHVINXNY TVLOL
%00 00426 - jo/Ala# E S0L »Lyo
10/A104 - - %00 - - uonealdag/Aepnp jended
%118 08€'vy $00'9€ %S5'EE Y6 75591 sa1ey) paxid
%085 88£°8¢ 10L°9T %9'L6 96167 £87'8¢ Sunaay B a3uIRU0D
%T'69 162186 254829 %S'2ET 9¥8'10E 0Z6'66€ saljddng 3 sjeuaiey
%LTZE 6YLES €£9°04T %0tz 20EvLT STO2LS S92IAISS [8NJIRNUOT
%Y"S9 99Z°LL 89505 %9'LS 08v'LL €79'%Y syyauag aakojdwy
%L2S 906°4LLE $ TET'66T $  %U9s 902'89€ $ 105907 $ sale|RS
S3SNIdX3 ANNA SISIYAUILNG AYVITIXNY
%8'¥8 STIPIE'T $ L96°WII'T S %OwT L2H'SSL S P06°L80'T S S3NNIAIY ONNS S3SINAYIINT AUVITIXNY TVL0L
%b'v6 000°'T 6 %08 0051 (352 anuaasy JaYy1o
%E'0 005°sZ 2L %9°96 00z €61 3nuaA3Y JUBUISAAY|
%5'98 SZ1'882°T $ TSHETT'T $  %6'6PT LeL'seL $ SLT'S80'T s $394 A0IAIIS
ANNIAIY ANNA SASIUAVIINT AHVIIXNY
%00 - $ 669 S %00 - S v 3 SIHUNLIANIXI ANNA 3DIAY3S 1830 TVLOL
%00 000 s - $  %TL6T 000'8 S BLL'ET S SINNIATY ANNA IDIAYAS 1830 TVLIO0L
%TEL 0007 S V't S %TL6T 0008 S su2'ee S BNUIABY JIBUISAU]
aNN4 31AY3S 1930
%L'6E 85548'T S TISSTYIT S %0ET 86G'SET'S S LTLT0TT S SIUNLANIAXT {QILI1S3Y)
ANNA IDNYNIINIVIAl B SNOILYHIHO TVL0L
%LLE 855748'T SELT80'T %T'ST TLL'609F €Y0'09TT Aepino jended
%00 - - %0°0 - - sagiey) paxid
%00 - $ TE'8T S %00 - $ ODE'WE $ saiddng pue sjesie N
%00 - $ S68°0F S %00 228529 $ wgLr $ $321AJ2S |2NYIRHUOD
SIUNLIANIINI
aaLNYLISIY ONN IDNVNILNIYIA '8 SNOILYNILO
%80T 8TI6°G9T'T $ $00'TeZ'T I %:14 798°225'S $ TIO'V9ST 3 SINNIAIY (QILDINLSIN)
ANNZ IONVNILNIVIA '8 SNOILYHIJO IVL0L
%00 - - %00 - - JBYI0
%S'LTT 00005 OEL'8S %ELTT 000'8t 86019 2NUBABY JUBWISIAU)
%0°0 - = %00 000°00S°€ - $324N0S JUSWILLIBAOE) |2JAPIA
%0°0 - - %0°0 88L°0¥T pot'e $321N0S JUSWUIBA0D) AIBIS
%C V0T 816STTT SLT'E9TT %6'€E8 vL0'VBLT ¥28°961'T saxe] Juaun)
1S32UN0S JUBLUUISAOS) [e207)
(Q3.1014.1534) NN IDNVNIINIVIN '8 SNOILYYIJO
%EBS €T0TAd €202/1E/T %E'8S ¥20ZAd v202/TE/T
1adpng/lenpy 193png |enuuy 138png/jenpy 133png jenuuy

paupneun

202 ‘1§ ABRUel PIpU3 SYIUOW UIAIS Y3 Jo4
pun4 Aq sainyipuadxy 13 sanuanay yz0z JedA jeastd Jo Atewsung
€T "ON U3SIQ 383)|0) Ajunwiwo) A3jjeA sioul|)

17



%00 = - %00 - - saiddns asueuajutey
%00 8EE'S6T - 10/A10# - 6€T Aepng (ende)
%00 0SP'sY 26607 10/AN04 - - S3IIAIIS [EA1IBIUC)
Jueld JO Sdueudue 1@ suonesado
%00 - 615'6 %00 - TET'0L 1S30AIBS JHqnd jeIoL
%0°0 : 066'S %00 - G86'LE SIS [eMORIU0)
%00 - 2T %00 - 0oL’ seyddng pue siepsateiy
%00 - 6t %00 - 8899 syyouag asAojdwy
%0°0 - 89€'E %00 - 658'72 sauejes
:uogeanp3 SuINuRuo)/SINAIRS Jgnd
%L9L 060°tbE 002192 %E'S8 060"V 05SE6T $33JAI3S JIPNIS jE10L
%9'0L 00082 TLL's1 %9'ES 00087 0t0'stT {1ueso Onyl) s1anem uohing
10/nia# - - %00 - 6LET0T Aepng jende3
%00 - [44:¥AS %00 - - san
%6°S6 0019 758's %T'LE SLT's 9%6'T Bunas 1 33uaRu0)
%L TV 008°C 894'9 %t0SE 006'T 8599 saiddng g sjeuate
%9'820T 8L SLT'sy %6101 8Ly T8y S3AIIS [ENJIRUCD
%L95 8TE08 TIS'SY %9°8Y 0EE'08 900'6€ sijauag aaAodwy
%6'1S 18022 $ 666°T2L S %TSS ¥06°€27 $ ToL'eet $ sallejes
1$DIAIDS JUDpNIS
io/na# . - . 185’ uoddng Jwapedy jejor
%0°0 - - %00 - - w:_uo@_z B U0
10/Aa# - %00 - ¥85'T sayddns pue sjetaiey
jo/Na# - - S %00 - 530IAJS [ENJIRIIUCD
%00 - - %00 = - s}ijouag aaAoldu
%00 - H - $ %00 - S - $ sauejes
naddng spuapedy
%I'EL €72'020'T TETIWL %b'TS €8TIPS'T 50018 uonInIsY| [e10]
%00 - VOELT - 796 Byo
%00 - 129°29T 870'YIE ove'Le AepaQ (ende)
%00 006 - lo/nia# - - SIRNIN
%8'L 160°2L 109'S %5'6 08569 215'9 Bujzasiy g 93uI34U0)
%L'EET v0L'€9 8Y°8YT %0'LLT £68'00T 299°8LT sai|ddng g sjiel21eN
%20t STT'65 89L'€C %YEL W'z €EL'L9 S32IAIIS [ENIIRIIU0D
%S'€ES 100202 266'20T %U'SYy $62'99¢ 1z0'0LT s1yauag vkoidwy
%9'TY (43 x44] S 65¥'59T $ %8y EVT'E0L $ 09€£'8€€ $ sajsejes
tuonINIsu)
SIHNLANIAXI ANNA 3SOdHNd QILIINLSIY
%TP9 099'891°6 $ §99°4/8'S S %TE9 €89°L81'S $ €TT'BLTE 3 S3NNIAATY AN 3S0d¥Nd QILINLSIY TVI0L
%00 000vE 99085 %S TTSZ 0002 62205 anuasay Yo
io/mias - - %00 - S8Y'ET SJUeID) 10 SYID [RIUBWUIDACSUON
%0'29 6TT'V858 TEQ'61IE'S %Z'85 S680TEY 96£°£0S'C SIINOS JUSWUISA0Y {RIIPIS
%8'06 1¥S°0SS $ 192'66F S  %L6L 88L VL8 $ ETT'L69 $ $32UNOS JWBWUIIA0D 33eIS
S3NNIAIY ANNA ISOdUNd QILINYLISITY
%E'BS €20ZA4 €20Z/TE/T %E'8S Y20TAd vzoz/te/t
123png/iendy 393png jenuuy 128png/flendy 193png jenuuy

paypneun

202 ‘T Alenuef papua syIuow USA3S 33 104
pung Aq s3nypuadx3 73 SINUIASY YZOT 1894 [BISHY $0 Alewiung
€TS *ON 1214351 333jj0) Auunwwio) Asjjea sioulil

18



%00 - s - %00 - [ §
%0°0 = $ €951 %0°0 - ¢ 90T 5
%8t 000'SS S 98t'9z %9'102 000°5L $ P8ILIST $
%0'0 0007 s - %00 002 $ - $
%0°LL 869'TET'8 $ 99's97'9 %T'79 £89°S6T'S $ 06T'TET'E H
%YEL 95S'EE6'Y IY'0z9'e %8'€9 98L'6TT'E 169'066'T
%609 £00°BEIT 8v2'909'T %0'SE ¥25'S8T 96'v9

%0'v0Z 188105 €56'€20"T I0/AIQ# - SEL'T

%00 - - %00 - -

%00 - - %00 00€°L -

%T'ST T9E900'2 LLT'Y05 %90 0598 005

%S°09 T92°6Z1 81582 %0'€9 ¥£5'66 90429

%00 282'0CT 266'02 %00 ) (44

%E'85 €T0TAS €20Z/TE/T %€'8S YZ0ZA4 $20Z/1T€/T
wdpng/lendy 199png jenuuy 12d9png/jenioy 198png |enuuy

pajipneuq

20T ‘T€ AJenuer papu SYIUoW USAJS Y3 104
pung Aq S3an31puadx3 1§ SONUIAIY YZ0T JBIA |2IsYd JO Aewung
€16 "ON 113510 939103 Alunwwio) AajjeA sioul)

13N - SHIISNVHL ONNAYALNT HSYD DNDIHOM
STUNUANIAXT NN HSYD ONDIYOM TVL0L

BNUBARY JUBLIISIAY|
SINNIA3H ANNS HSYD ONIYOM

13N - SHIASNYHL ONNIYILNI QILD1YLSIY
SIUNLUANIANI GNNA AILOINLSIY TVIOL
(4433H 73 ©O3S 1§ 113d) SI2AEAN PUB SJURID JUSPNIS

oddns jeuonnnsu) jeiol
RY0
JIBYaq-ua NS
poddng jeucimnsut
SIIIALAS [ENIDRIIUOD
(Apmis Jop jesapad) sauejes
:poddng jeuonniisu)

JuR|d JO BdUBUAUIR A R Suonesado 2oL

19



%279 LEE'TSTT S 952'81L $  %T0S 952°80S°T $ 9sssss $
%L°0S ¥I1'689 OvZ'6vE %U'8Y ELTYSL 056°79¢

%058 00z'0rz 860707 %5'9L 000'552 76661

%00 005y %00 005't -

%87 00S‘T 99z'y %TLhb 005°T 804'9

%875 000zt wsL'tL %T°0L 000°0tT $12'26

%09 v£68127 ovT'eT %9°S 15229 £29'%T

%019 ov6'18 8L6'6Y %TES 7606 £9€°8Y

%995 00279 £1ST9T %0'79 009°Z1S 196'LTE

%L L 00S TLE %S'vb 00S (142

%E'59S 001 1133 %6'LYTT 00T 8vT'T

%S'9S 00919t 165°092 %819 000°ZTS L66°9TE

%UTL EVE9ET 866291 %0'TE £8Y'THT 660

%S°v8T 007 695 %b'SST 005 L

%808 005'SZT 8SE'T0T %90 005'6ZT 10L

%8'99 618'8C TS2'6T %E 9 £LT'62 SE8'ST

%T'LS v28°'18 1z8'ay %Y€Y 01298 9Z9'vS

%¢°10T 569775 T 767551 %166 9v5'S95°T aurosstT
%00 - - = =

%T'ELY 0002 OP'ET %9'S6 000°€T f44 44}

%6°00T $69'525'T $ TOV'6ES'T $  %I'66 9v5'7SS'T $ PSEBEST $
%L'PL 000°0t S T9'ee $  %S'T6 005'9t $ 000ty $
%ZT'TL 000'TY 7e9'st %526 0059t 000€Y

%Z70T sTy'zy 1S€°Et %6'26 66€'LY 920t

%S°0ZE 0sT 8% %L'66 008 86t

%' T0T LT $ o8y $  %8T6 668'9Y $ 8TSEY $
%E'8S €T0TAL €20Z/TE/T %E'8S vZ0ZAd veoz/ie/T
193png/lenmpdy 193png |enuuy 193png/jenioy 195png |enuuy

paiipneun

©Z0Z ‘T€ Atenuer papus SYILOW UIASS A} 404
pung Aq sasnjpuadx3 1@ SANUSARY pZOZ Je9A (@514 §O Asewwing
€15 "ON 1}351g 33a1{0) Ayunwwo) A3jjeA siouly

SIYNLIANIIX3
ANNA ININI1LLIS '8 NOILIILOYd ‘ALINIEVIT TVIOL

Hoddns jeuogninsu e}oy,

sa8sey) paxiy
Sunaa 1 22uAIRJUO)
saiddng 3 sjeualew
SINAISS [ENIIRIUC)
sijauag asAojdwy
sallejes

:Jaoddng [euoinyisuj

Jueld JO douRLIUIR 73 SUORRIADQ 301
sanyin
sayddng g serialey
SOLAIDG [ENIIRJUOD
‘Juejd Jo ddueudulely 1§ suonessdo

53IAIIS JUIPNIS |BIOL
salddng 13 sieuatew
5321AI3S [EN)DRIIUG)
syyouag 3nhojdw3z
salseles
59IIAISS JUBPNIS
SINLIANIX3
aNNd INJWITLLIS '8 NOILIILOYd ‘ALimavIl

INN3AIY
ANN4 INIWITLLIS '8 NOLLDILO¥d ‘ALITIEVIT TVLIOL

anuasay JBYI0
BNU3ATY JUSUISIAUL
SaXe | JuasIN)
15324N0S JUSWUIBAOL) [€207]
3NNIAIY
ANNd AINFWITLLIS '8 NOILIILOYd ‘ALIIEVIT

SIYNLANIIXI ONNd LIGNY TVLOL

S3DIAJRS [ENJIRIU0D)
SIUNLANIXT ANNY LIaNY

S3MNIAY ANN3 LANY TYL0L

ANUBARY TUBWIISIAY|

SIXE L JUDIIND
1S92INOS JUBWUIIA0L) |20
SINNIAIY ANNS LICNYV

20



%LYS 8TT'TY'BE 1¥9°0Z0'TZ saumpuadxy yZAd €101

%899 LTE'89 ¥59°Str 12wy Ado)
%1'89 PIS'E0T vIS°0L SuinRaay 13 Suiddiys
%8'61T ST5°06€ 9/€'858 210153009
%6°LS 92T 09187t $32N053Y UBWINK
%€ BES9ET 85598 Buiseyaingd
%599 000°52T 089641 221A13§ po04
%0°90T 00v'sz8 959'vL8 SIBAIEA UOIN L
%Y'8Y €LT°95L §56'S9E JuawaBeuen sty
%L'6 000°005'€ 985'6E€ (1ueso) s23ud) p3 Sy
%L'L 88L°0vC TEOLT (1ue1o) y10m 3S 3v-0320
%8'T 059801 790't {weJo) adpug aaneaouu|
%E'ES IV VEET SETTTL uoRNINsU| [2I2UID/SIINALSS ssBUISNY
%LT9 009°01S £96'V1E Anaas sndwe)
%8ES Z76T'S0T £65'9§ 191UR) emeno
%S ¥S 060'v¥E SL8°48T (1ue1D $539n5 JUIPMS) O.L
%9°95 TSL°TSE 759'66T SAMBJYIY
%9°99 660'TS 6LE'8T $IIAIDS J9DIe)
%Y'€9 0ZE62H'E 6VT'SLTT pIy [e1dUeULy
%L'9F 605'S0V 105'68T SANNIBS JUBPMIS
%015 678'6TL Yy TLE Bujlasunoy
%6 YET'V8Y 00€°LTZ 5p1023Y 1§ SUOISSIUPY
%YLy 0€6°069C £€T8'087'T UOISIAIQ SUOISSR40.d YIEDH
%5°8S 150's60°E £SST18'T UOISIAIQ 9IUBIDS [BIJ0S/SLIY Duly 7 Safjiuewny
%1'8S €SL°L6TE P6'9S8°T UOISIAG SSBUISNE 7§ SRIUBLIS [eINjeN
%E'TS 046°£02°C 0S8°SSTT UOISIAQ URWAO[RAIQ 2010PIOM
%T'TS T6LSLLT TYL'606 §324n0s3Y Jutuseal
%L95 62°07S 661'S6T uogeanp3 ynpy
%E"9S ¥£6'89F 986'€9¢ (1ues) Hivd
%9'90T ¥29°617 991'vET (1ueun) pooypiyd Ate3 3ovI3

10/n1a# - 89L'y (wwess) 3430
%0°6€ [144:4 LYT'16 (uei9) sunyad (el
%0'0 000°0£2 - (1ue19) IYWOLY
KEOL TOT'9LE Y592 SHBJJY PRIy
%LTT 0L 19T T¥8'8T SSIUIAIIFYI [eUOHNIASY|
%5°99 L6T'Y18T 96'EP8'T s2130]0uyI3 | uonzew oY
%S'6S £96'VES"Y 895'269°C s3Iy
%169 68L'TTL E1T'¢6Y ualzeonpy Suinuuo)
%8'LS 6T6'9€ET 9ST'6L uoliepunoy
%9°'8T ZES'ELE T9€'69 suoieIUNWWOoY) pue Sunayew
%6°58 006'vT v6L'TT $99]5N41 JO preog
HEEL SULEEE 67'9vT WapIsasg
%E'BS ~ peozAd YZ0ZAL awuedaqg
393png 123png |endy
J1enpy |enuuy

paypneun
202 ‘1€ Asenuer jo se

122140 1°8png Ag - spund ||y
uosuedwo) [enyy 0) 198png KZ0Z JE3A [eds]d
€T "ON 1911151 33310 Ayunuiwo) AdjjeA souyl

21



19]|08u00
uosuyof a3

x TerSETeLYS §
TIressIory jueg ss1E}S pUElPIN
‘papiwqns Ajnpoadsey 20°289°LEL $ jueg Aaeys ajjese
vozZLO'GLZ'oZ $ Zo'8vsLLL  § - $ - $ stovl'olz'y § €z26€'5Lk 0§ - $ PS8EL'669 $ €6'220'0SZ'T $ 0L'809'€6l'€ $ 16'SSS'8VEVL $ JuUSURSIAU| |10
99'081°98Y 99°081°98% QW-pung "Asq feided
00'8¥5°2E6'S 00°€05°2v2°T 00°€82'vE9 00°86£°0Z0°L 00'798°vE0'Z sanlnves
1109/8,00-SBUIpIOH ViINd
£eTHLLE - - - L9'9L0PL 3 - 10°286°¢ - zThig'e SPIVLTL W -sBuIPIOH VN
00"05£'696°¢ 00705+ L0V’ 00°05¥°€89 00'006'9¢2 00°055'L¥9'L $,00 +4V1aS!
8£°9£9'6€8 - - - 90°cY8SE . - - £8°261°CL5 1£°020°81L2 81°0£5'2) spung +4v1as|
1z'92¢e'28V'vL 288V LLL - - Z1'890°09 £TL6E'SLL = £6°€2802 v'661'206 11°698°LLET 9£°698°009'0L spun stoulli|
00'658°29v - - - 00'658'Z9% - - - - - - usodae( Jo sajeayiuey
£r'6eT'6LY'S 62'950°605 98'6.8vS6 10°290°LZ 86'EVZ'E66 (s€'920'6¥9) (8g"150°21L8) ve'gev'elz St'pLZ'LLE £1°206°SS 8Z°8E1L520°C JONVIVE XNV
S6'2¥2'09Z S6°2p2'092 sy99y3g buipueysing
(25°985'681) (26-985°681) Msues] ut spsodaq
§0°620'80%'S 62°9¢1'605 99'6.8'V56 20290°12 86°SYZ'C66 (6¢°920°6t9) (ge"150°ZL8) v8sZY'ELe StviT'218 £'206'SS 06°186°c00°C JONVIVE LNNODOV
(28'¢62°2£8'2) - (2e'pev'28) - . (9g-¢89°821) (z220z'v8) - {91 100'zeD) (98" 12v90Y) (06'6¥5°882°L) sainypuadx3y
00°000°000°1 - - - - 00°000°00% - - - 00°000009 S0 yueg/siasuesl
- - Z - - - - - - - - §)99y woa4/ol anQg
26°71£°682°L 62°9£1'605 £TPLEZPO‘L 20°290'12 86°CYZ'c66 (e5z6¢ 026) (99°8v8‘221) resercle 19°622°6V2 L 6ZT¥ZE 2oV 08'LESTVLY ysed [ej0)
9e'0LZ'008  $ 9P'968'vLE - - - 00°518 ZY'650'SS - 81°20¢€°22 0L0v1'20¥ sidiasay [ejoL
95°791°58¥'9 $ €8'6ES'Y6L  $ €TPIE'ZVOL $ 20290°k2 ¢ 8e'evZ'ees ¢ (£5202°126) ¢ (B0v06'zeY) $ ve'sEv'elT  $ 192’6l $ 1STLZOGER  $ OLLESOvL'E § pueH uo asuejeg

V10L SdIHSHVIOHOS IN3W31LL3S Lany HSVD aaLoNLSIY AdvIIxny 1SIUILINI ETRTTGEL] INIVINIdO NOLLYONa3

2 SNT'SINYD % °LO¥d ‘avil ONDIHOM 2 aNOg "INIVIN / O

¥20Z ‘1€ Atenuer papus YIUoN a3 4o} s
SMO|4 Yse) JO Judawalels

abajjo9 Alunwiwon AajjeA sioulyj

22



unr Aey ady Jepy go4 uer 23Q AON 10 dag gny Inf unf
1 i i i i i =k 1 1 1 L 1 i W

= T {SHIPURUNS PRIEPIY U %S (] I9RIEL 01$ 3
0z$ 5
|I|\\\\ m m
(208 70) spung Sunesadp eam— 0€s =

ors

sisAjeuy asuejeg pung

o 10 % o0 — —
@0 o oo oo,.a 3 %0E
NS NS ge0® ge0® ae0® sanumag
- . . . > JUIWILIBAOD)
1 OHW W 3 JO sajeaiiuap
s §
. 0TS & €
@
0€s %ty
+4v1d5I '8 |00d
ajnpayas Aniel ~ UBWISDAL) Stoul)|
. %8
....... = — e e — . T 1unoxy %8T
: e § ) /0)'6 L9 b | €6 i ey, o | pivjepueul  ysed
Yueg so||Iasiep
%0 600'crL 600l - . Jueg puejuesy
%21 099'696'S AL 815'2E6'S - mm:_U_OI YNd
%0 - - - - jueg IN umolewoH
%l 658'29 - 658291 - SajInoeg yueq NN
%0 - - - 8 YuEg S018WW0Y
%<C 169'L 12 1S9'LLL - - queg IelS sjjese]
%l 181'98% 181'08 - - Bpig-ssie1s puelpiy
%6 096'196'C 095'196'C - - Y/d-s8lels pueipiiy (Yot VeV ; ! $1
14" 8/G'79/'v 8/G'/9.'% - - jueg sajelg pue|plin %EeLY'S £96'9Z€'Gl %0 +4v1dsI
1 1004 WSWISSAU] SIoul||
%tL 986'808'Y - 05€'696'C 9£9'6£8 spund +4v13sl %1.18°E LS2¥98°01 %862 SOUNJIBT JUSWLIBA0S
g ysodeq Jo sejeoyIeD
%l 9z¢'/18v'vL oze'leb'rL $ [BISUSS- Spuny |__. %002 ¥ 09S'196'C %G8 JuNoJDY pIy [eloueul4
| %¥.9'E . L85'5vL'9 & [%L L)

vzoz ‘1€ Aenuep
spund |ly
Moday snjejs JususaAu)
£15 "ON 1a1381q 069107 Apunwwio) AsjeA siou)|

23



aussy 3vr0di0) %56'T S4AvrI8T00 SQETNOqqVY  LE6'L6 020°LE 6LV'01 SP8'91 765'€€ STOT/S1/E

ansspyesodio)  94,00°C GIVEISR08  QBMIPS PUEY) C/p'L6 9r8'9g 0gr'01 99L'91 pep'EE STOT/OL/E
anssjwrodio)  v,68'7 8gdAIEsSo  wonesodio) | qg SL8°Ls L66'9€ £LK0L $£8'91 1L8'c¢ $T07/97/0L
ausspawiodio)  o40pT TZOMS99T0  EPUOH UBdLIBWY  97S'86 £PT'LE sl w691 YoLEE YTOUILLIY
ansspaypz0dio)  o4g¢°C 6AD9I8ST0  ssudxy uedLRWY  £67°66 018'LE 819'01 890°L1 LEOVE PTOUEIS
SIINSEILL JA0D  %00'C ILA6HLETE DWTHA S8E‘1S €TH'61 86v°'S 8£8'8 ST9LL 6202/ST/6
QUNSBILL A0 %66'E 6SISHOYIE VNG S78'69 659z 'L 01071 0S6'€T 6207/1/1
SILNSEAI] JA0D  %400'0 PASAHLETE JWTHA 786701 LT6'8E 610°1T £ILLT £78'se 8707/ST/OT
SMINSEILY JAOY) %S PLSVHLETE DWTHA 609°7ST 989'LS 62€'91 6¥7'97 Spe'Ts 8T07/ST/6
SOURSEILL JA0D) %8 IXOVHLEIE JIWTHA 789°101 9€h*8E 08801 68r°L1 LL8'PE 8207/ST/9
SILINSBILL JACD)  4E9°€ YAHITBTI6 PYUNNG BJog 705919 000'€£7 $56's9 120903 9TW1IT 8207/1€/S
SUNSBILLIA0D %667 TILAVISIE VIANA  06L°Z€1 S6140S 60T°FI 098°7Z LYS'SH LTOUSYTLL
SIHNSBAIL 340D %GIE SLAGALETE JWTHA SS6'IL 661°L7 669'L 9LE'TX 1897 LUOUST6
PUNSELL I %6IE E£SMVILELE JWTHA 8ST'0ZN LSy'sy 898°71 8907 SPTIP LWUSTL
SLMSEALY A0 %ILE CLITALENE DWTHA 096°6£T S0L'06 9L9'ST LTIy 90£°z8 LTOTISTIY
SILINSEAIL IACD  %0S°T rAADI8II6 uedIoN LT PS'R6E 69051 rro'Ty 6589 00L'9€1 LTOT/IE/E
SLINSKALIA0D  Y%ep's BZALLEIE DWTHI 088°TL 6PS'LT 86L'L SESTI 866'PT LTOUSTT
SUNSEAIL 30D %01 SOHA'TOPIE VIANA TST'L8 186'T€ 9£E'6 LO0ST 82667 970Z/1/6
SUBSBALLJA0D  %EST 08AQISEIE VINNA  910°STE 9STLY LLS'ET £0S' 1T 188'TF 920/ /L
SILINSEAUL JACD  %EST 0SA04LEIE DWIHA PbS'TS 79861 9's 8€0'6 £20‘81 970/ST/S
SUUSBIL JA0)  %L9T PASATISEIE VNI 082'68 sTze 6LI' pSLYL £TP'67 920U/¥i¥
SIUNSBIL] JA0Y)  %SLD) LLADT8TIE ueBI0 AT $91°90€ 0€L'STI 09L'TE 099°TS $10°S0T 9207/1€/8
SIUMSBILL JA0D  %I9'E APAHOYIE VIANA 008°L6 896'9¢ Sovol 7891 SPS'EE 1\ 1] Pra
SUNSEAUL 0D %L6'E INUSTISELE VINNA  807°0€T s1T'6F €6 96577 199'FF STOU/TE
SIUNSEILL JA0D  U%PLT SA9SALEIE OWTHA 8ZI‘S8P 61°81 0st's 8LT'8 80591 STOTUST6
SLNSBAY JAC)  %GL] 60ADTLIIE SAVMNIIG BINWON 606199 10T0ST yIsioL 8rE'EIL SE0°LTT STOTSI/E
% RQWAN 330N BPI°H 0], JOUBRIRS  [SE) SUDHoAR  KEfNay uf 7 puog PPMSY RN § 900 monenpy
Iy ¥ U050 ] WT0
omqery
pT0T ‘1€ Asenuep

LHO0dTd SALVLS INTIWLSEANI VINd
AOATTOD ALINNWIWOD ATTTIVA SIONI'TTH

24



8YS'TE6°S - €0S°TVT'T - £8LPE9 E 86£070°1 PI8°PE0°T VIAd [B10L

anss [ediungy %191 9ZN960160  TvweySunuLug ¢lLch rTs'9l LLO'Y 6IS'L r66'r1 6T0TU/L
anssy [edtonpy %ST'T $ONLISST9  AuD yewowiny .80'06 €S0°VE 6€9°6 S6¥'st 006'0€ LT0T/0E/9
anssp [edprungy 940871 TANMZLLOT mopduue) 9116 8SH'PE ¥SL'6 089°S1 89T'IE LTOU19
anss] [edptunyy o487 LEOOTIFIG 8D AIsAIN 988'96 LY'9T ¥TE0L 96591 s6o0'ee LTOTISV/S
anss edpunpy %4667 TZHTE8SLS SHASNIPIBSSEIN  Z20'9S 911z $66'S 9£9°6 91T'61 LTOUN/S
anss| [edprunyy 0GR INEAEIOET BIULIONIB)  £75°0S 86061 90b's 069'8 6ze'Ll LTOTIT/E
anss] fedpungy %01°C 9AD00ILLE uISueISIN - 7EL°9PI S9P'sS 00L's1 8€7'ST 67€'05 9707/1/S
ansspayeaodio] 94667 0A9 AL8T00 QY 068°S6 9FT'9€ 09Z°01 £6¥'91 068'7€ 9Z0T/ITNT
anss| iesodio) %S6'F TADLOLEY jodaq amoH  Tep 101 Ipe'sE £58°01 9Py LT I6L'PE 9702/0€/6
anssperodio)  vy,L7'S €ADLLFLSS diop ugamg £SHI01 6¥€'8€ SS8'01 0SPLY 86LPE 9207/¢/8
anssyapeaodio)d  oLGpp TADILOIPE 0DV IMJ BPHOLE  £40°0S 91681 sse's L09°8 SOI'LI 920TSLIS
ansspajesodio  o405°¢ IXADIS090 WMWY goyueg peo‘Izl 8LG'Sk ST0°CH 12607 0TL'TY 920GV
ansspaesodio)  o450'S TLMATIIPPT  1ende) 219 uyor 68p 101 £9€'8E 658‘01 9SpLE LI8bE 920T/€/E
anssy 93810d10)  %5ES 9JALYROLE OAS qNJ HISUOISIA  88E'0S 90'61 16€°S L99'8 €8T°L1 STOTOL/1L
anssj qes0di0)  o467T'S SAASPPEIL oxnsdog 1eL'0S 9LI'61 8TH's 97L'g 1o0¥'LL STOZ/OLIL
anssy aesodio)y %06°€ 6MATYTIEE MBN-[EAL SSTPL 890'87 SP6'L L't 69%'ST ST0T/6/6
anssp qesodio)  0469°¢ 1AM19£768 dao) ;oo 8sE‘ge 6LI'LE $7S'01 81691 LEL'SE STOT/8L/8
anssy yei10dio)  y,06°€ LNINHSZ99p  2sByD ueBiol dr Lbb'86 €IT'LE pES 01 £€6°91 L9L'EE STOTISH/L
anssjjesodio)  o0pE SATALIGYL aepdiane) 067°86 ySILE LIS'01 90691 cIL'es STOT/EYS
anssp e10dio) o4 0bC padovigsy  wouesodiod PIuf L67'86 9SI‘LE 8IS'01 L0691 9IL'EE ST0T/STYE
% RqUMN 30N TPIOH \oL JIDWOPPS  §SeD ublopy ABipxay Juf » puog RISy JWE » BAQ  wopwnpy  4Nd
vy % uon3NoIg WFO
Tmqery
$207 ‘1€ Aaenusp

LUOdTd SNLVLS INIIWLSIANI VINd
TOHTTOD ALINAWIWOD ATATTVA SIONITTI

25



adL
T-€E€EPSET
qdL
qdL
1-60¥¥SET
T-PEEFSET
adgL
adlr
I-80%¥SET
F-LEEPSEL
I-S669S€1
1-8L1¢€S€ET
T-6LTESET
T1-96695€1
yIsTsel
T-LOVPSET
I-SEEYSET

qumnN

TEGID

%b9y
%8I°S
%I8'Y
%E8Y
%61°S
%ELS
%60°S
%9TS
%8Y°'S
%09°S
%9€'S
%08°S
% €SS
%Iv's
%t¥es
%tr's
%I¥'S

%

AdV

% b9V
%S81°S
%I8'Y
%E8P
%61°S
Y%tE'S
%60°S
%9T’S
%8¥°S
%09°S
%9E°S
%08°S
%ES'S
%Iv'S
%be's
%t
%Ib'S

%
ey

0S€°696°€ - 0SPIOV'T - -

ISILLY, 29 Yueg ZMIYIS  009°8TT
Nuey JeuoneN Jsg  000°977 000972
vsnued 041D 0S0°€€T 0S0°€€T

HuEg 0L 000'€ET

Amedwio)) Jsnif, uoaXI], (SO‘T€T
uou() JpA) JINXEY (SEIET 0SE'1€T
queq [eqolD) QSL'LET 0SL'LET

4SS “ueg 1seo) P, (SELET

fueg XaN  006°9€T

U} HPM) SINUNSUOD) ()LOET

Nueg IS SIABS  00T0PT
NI Sfueg [erapay Jenuent] (SL°9€T 0SL'9€T
uow() PPAL) JEIGA  SS 9ET 0SS°9€T7

suey DUBHY WINSIM  0ST'CHT

Hueg UOSINLIO]) ccc.ocN

jueg J3ed 006'9€Z

queqgIvlS S 0SE'€rT

Hueg oy JOWINIIS [SE) TUDHOAY Areny juy 7§ puog
7 uonIoig
Apqery
¥707 ‘1€ Kienuep
SYUANSIAUL +J V' TASK

ADTATI0D ALINAWINOD AT TIVA SIONITTL

0SP'€89 006°9€7 0S5LPOT
009'87Z
000°€€T
0S91€Z
0S€°LET
006°9€Z
00L°9€Z

00Z°0¥T

0ST'EPT

00000

006'9€2

0SEErT

pauIsey JUIey 7 1200 goneanpy

W?0

ad el

9707/6/1

ST0T/6/01

ST0U/6/L

ST07/6/L

sLoUrLY

STOT/LIV

ST07/6/1

ST0T/6/1

Yoo/ 11/01

¥207/8/01

YTOT/EL/6

¥Z02/6/6

¥Z07/6/6

YZ07/€1/9

yaoz/0T/s

POy

Yoy

26



eIpu Jo Nueg AEIg
Nueg e NS

nRquny
EITAITIFE]g)

%S$9°0
%0L°0

%

ey

U ‘SAQLINIIG Hueg-H N SAIN
6S8°T9% - 65879 - - - - -
SHIN 98€'+TT 98€vTT
SHIN €LV'8€T ELY'BET
Hueg [e10]. JIOWaNS  [SE) SUDI0A Anexny Wy ¥ puoq paLnsay U ¥ Ao uonw¥INpy
¥ TondAolg NW¥®0

$70T ‘1€ Atenuep
LYO4Td SNLVLS INTIWISTANI
AOATIOD ALINNWINOD AT TTVA SIONITTI

ador

920T/5TUT

YaoT/TL8

anda

27



T 98e4d

¥8UIYSI aUs 0S'ZE6'VTE uopesodio) Suippenuod 9r  £9768 vz0T/ve/T  9v8887
Wa1sAg SulojuoN 16'£680T uoneInp3 NUIS J3Ysi4  S8TT6 v707/vT/T 658837
sadseyd pied upasd Alyuo LTLOT'S SIJIAIRS Jaquidwpae) uej3  6ZZC0T ¥20T/ve/T  S€888L
AnoL109|3 LL'SES9T douj ‘A313u3maN UOIe|RISUCD  B6YYTL ¥Z0e/ve/T  vE888L
saljddnsg asiy ¥6'9899 duj ‘sa01MBS [ende) uozewy  TTZSET v20T/ve/T  17888L
Sa01AI8S Ajandas 12°700°8 MBS AJINDDS esuBAluN PaAIlY  9%560C ¥Z0T/ve/T  0T888L
lloihed(q)/sy pue (q)eor  6E°0ELL SHVd3 VSL ¥70Z/8T/T HOV
saxe] |loJAed alels S8'vi8st aNuaAay jo Juswpedaq sioulj| ¥20T/8T/T HOV
saxe] ||oiAed |esapa4 6£'S05°8S SJIAIDS BNUDASY |eusu| ¥20Z/8T/T HOV
suoilnpaq ||oJAeqd 96°€T0'LS S4YNS /6878 ¥20Z/8T/T 71888L
suononpag ||oJAed 00°000°S IsnJ] puedueg puejuesH  6¥SS6T ¥207/8T/T 66£88L
seg :Aqsaj80-salin LOTYT'S D11 'se9 pue Jamod pjaysueiN  /SEEET vT0T/LT/T  0SL88L
$994 Juswadeuel Juld TTET9'8 ISOMPIN SUOIIN|OS SSaUISNG X049 99Z€/T ¥20T/LT/T SvL88L
wet301d 3d)AI9S poo4 LY'SES YT judwasBeuep Joquy  88ESET vZ0T/LT/T  TvL88L
SI0UIAIRS ANIndag 65°69€°€T AIBS AJINDAS |esIBAIUN PRIIY  9¥S60T vZ0Z/L1/1  OvL88L
Asenuer 70z DDAl 06'€2£65C wnJosSuo) YieaH ass)|o) Anunwwo)  T/860¢ #20Z/0T/T 0000003
Sung Appapeny 876518 uoneiodio) Jojend|s ddnpjuassiyy  0SHT ve0z/0T/1  TEL88L
[IYS puUNoS aAd.g ey 00°009°LT ySiyaders  7/LT6ET v20Z/0T/T 97/88L
ulwpy waisAs 330D :Hoddng waisAs 00°598°S Ivd  09Y60T ¥20Z/0T/T ST/88/
deg puewaq weiso.d 00'0S2'8 ISedY8N  OVTSEL v20Z/0T/T 96988~
uo1129101d 321j0d AQSDIFQ (IIIAIRS JOMIS pue Bl 80'9LEL Agsai3p o AN 6911 vZ0Z/0T/T  76988L
Auoups|3/sen :emeno/Aqsa|30-saimjin €159 sioul]|| usJawy  69ET ¥202/0T/T 08988~
sa01M9s AJndas  TT°ST8'CT MRS AJunoas [esisaun paNlY  97S60T ¥202/0T/T 99887
lloiAed(q)Lst pue (q)c0r SS'TI8T'L SYV¥d3 VSL v20e/v/T  HOV
saxe] |loJAed 91e1S  $9°8HT'TT 3aNUaAdY 40 Juswpeds( sioul| ¥20T/v/T  HOV
saxe] jjoJAed jeiapad ¥6°85S6°€S JIAI3S INUSAIY |euIdlu| veoz/v/T HOV
suollanpaq |jolheqd ST'SLLTS SYNS /6878 ¥20z/v/T 999887
suonpa( ||oAed 00°00009 Isniy puesjueg puejuesH 65561 ¥202/v/T  89988L
suonnpaq jjosAed 00'000STC IsnJ] puejueg puejuesH  6bSS6T ¥20T/v/T  £S988L
suolnpa( jloihed 00°00SCL queg sduines eRINT 16678 ¥20C/v/T 999881
suolnpag ||oiAed 00'000°S€T jueg ssulnes eyaun3  $6678 ¥20T/v/T  SS9887
BulllelN dSPT [e1)U] 10} [eISOd 00°0009 S 013G [BISOd SN 88TT ve0T/s/T  L¥988L
:o_un__._umwn_ junowy ww>mn_ JoquinnN 9leqd JoquinN
PB{Yd Jopuap PI3YD »3yd

¥Z/1E/10 - ¥Z/10/10
SjuUaWAsSINgsiqg 13AQ pue gp0‘ss

28



5123(04d (SHd) A19jeS pUE ‘Y3 BaH ‘U0I1323104d,

1913\ 404 938e)s0d

LAupoe4 3a8ei01s 3es

35UDIIT UMY OS SUOISSILPY 1S
JUS WY SDIALIS SUIYIBA] SBU|IDM
193[0ad Buii wue4

+Wooy pueg/y113d

uonduasag

7 99e(

TE'8I8'SY6'T S

00'000°S Sdsn-uaipenp
L6 THT'V9 Auedwo) uoi3oniisuo) SulIassIA
00°000°S¢ 2Uf ‘SUOKINJOUYID}
00°0ST0T au] “Yaydduns
00°0T8°€9T 71 ‘suos pue Ao
T0'165°TS U0132NJ3SUOY) 01153(] O
junowy oohed
$RYD

ve/1€/10 - v2/10/10
sjuswasingsiq 490 pue 000'ss

61T9¢CT
[4]013 Y4
0290v¢
9Lt
00TS¢€C
JaquinN
JOpUIA

v207/97/1
veoz/ve/t
veot/ve/1
vz0Z/ve/T
veoz/ve/1
veoe/ve/1
aleg
»P3Yd

HOV

84888~
£/888L
898884
158882
6v888L

Jsquinn
A3YD

29



0ZETSO0THOZETTO  |00°6942 15 | be0T/8T/T0 | £202/p1/2Y | £707/51/80 J01RUIPIOD)) WesBioid 31095 Q ‘uosuyor
Buijesy pasueapy|  00E-0TZC-DAH | 02ETSO0THOZETTO  |00'Z62€ 1S | #T02/ETfS0 | +e0T/81/S0 | v20z/11/10 0D£-0T22 DAH 11095 (@ ‘uosuyor
Bupinag/uonejiesul ubisaq|  00E-0¥2T-DAH | OZETS00THOZEITO  |00°Z62E 1S | veoz/ee/so | vzou/8riso | v20z/T1/10 00£-0b2T DAH 1005 @ ‘uosuyog
0ZETSOOTHOZETTO 006952 1S | be0T/8T/T0 | v20T/2T/10 | +202/60/10 J0jRupI00) wabold O35 @ ‘uosuyor
5WAASAS 1BINdWo) "sng O adu|  009-Z00T-ISD 0ZETSO0THOTITI0  [00°899€E 1S | +20Z/€T/S0 | ve0T/81/s0 | vz0T/1T/T0 009 Z00T 150 upely uesly) ‘yoneg
swiasAg Jaandwio) sng o our|  OT-Z00T-1SD 0ZETSOOTHOZTITO  |00°899E IS | ¥eog/ezfs0 | vzoz/8risy | vz0z/11/10 00T 2007 1S urel ueRslay) “yaneg
SWaISsAS Jandwo) 'shg 0] anul|  TOT-ZOOT-ISD 0ZETSOOTHOZITIC (007899 15 | Feoz/ez/so | v2oe/81/se | vT0e/11/10 10 20T IS UL URISHYD ‘yne(,
SSIUISNG JO JUWUAUF (@67 Byl | 10-0002-1Ng 0ZETS00LS0ZTIT0 005442 1S | #20z/€z/S0 | ve0z/81/50 | veoe/11/10 10-000Z g piemp3 sawer ‘SuopsIuIH
ABojoului) | 00T-0b0Z-1¥D | OZETSO0LSOZTITO  |00'bHST 1S | ¥e0T/T/E0 | ¥EOT/SO/E0 | $20T/11/10 001-0+02 04D 1924011 LIASY ‘SOUWLDH
S9BT wouj AOISIH ‘S| 00S-T002-STH 0ZETS00S90ZTTI0  |00'HI0T 1S | veoz/ez/so | veoe/BT/SO | #Z02/10/10 00S-100Z SIH 1 uopueig ‘Ausy
JURISISSY BUISINN PSYSD | T09-+TZT-HIV OCETS00EL0ZFTTO  |00°S/bY 1S | #202/%T/€0 | +T0Z/S0/E0 | H202/11/10 HUHD/AET 109-5TET HIY 02N JBjluuB( “iBsney
Bumyadid| 00€-202T-LWI | OZETSOOTHOZEITO  |00°£822 1S | #z0T/Ee/so | veve/8Tiso | peoz/1i/io 00£-£0ZT LINT ueaq Aeg ‘mopiey
11 Ayoueld “1snpup Jised | 10-1021-313 0ZETSOOTHOTETIO  |00°ZLSY 1S | beoz/eT/so | bzoz/RI/SO | vTOZ/IN/TO T0-107T 373 [ uAS Loizng
Buip [ea09i3 | T0-9021-313 OZETSO0THOZETTD 0079822 1S | #Z0z/€T/S0 | vTOT/81/S0 | be0e/1T/i0 10-9021 313 { usARlg oizng
Jowied jeuondsdxg Ayl | 00T-6002-3D3 | OZEIS00SS0ZZIT0  |00'b2LT IS | veog/eefso | ve0e/g/so | vzoz/11/10 00T 5002 303 7 BllduR( "uos)EIsNg
0CETSO0THOZETTIO |00 T6E 1S | ve0T/rT/e0 | v20T/S0/E0 | vZ0R/TI/10 20 SPU3S OM daid dminiy sawel 3oog ‘Jegnis
'SOd 19(4 ‘1921 Pl MYWS|  20-00ZT-GTM 0ZETSO0THOZETTO  |00°9¥ER 1S | $TOZMPI/E0 | bR0T/SO/E0 | br0e/11/10 20 S8U8S 0IM sawe[ 100S “Jeqnig
"JPung g injdnAS Apog uewnH | 001-002T-018 0ZETS002802ZTT0  |00°5442 1S | eoc/ee/se | ¥Z0z/81/S0 | ve0T/11/10 001-00Z1 019 M pleuoy ‘nesjoss
0ZETSO0EL0ZPII0  [00°ETHE 15 | vz0z/€T/S0 | v20e/RT/S0 | $T02/11/10 U003 welbalg Aologalud uuy Asgy ‘anaun
Aojogaiyd JO PRI B "Uld| 00€-2STT-HIV | OZETSO0EL0ZHTT0  |00°TTHT S | #T0Z/PT/E0 | $0T/S0/E0 | bZOZ/TT/T0 NI O0E-2SZT HIY uuy Ae ‘anain
1 uoiysodwoD ysiIbul|  SO-TO0T-ON3I 0ZETS00SY0ZTITO 007622 1S | »e0e/Ee/so | vZ0e/81/so | veoz/11/10 S0-T00T ONI W BlARY ‘|lamuasiD
UOHEIUSWINASUT |RLSIPUL|  Q0E-E0Z1-173 | OZ€TS00TPOZETI0  |00°S442 1S | peoz/ce/se | z0z/81/se | +Z0T/11/i0 00£-£071 113 3 spuepaly ‘ssad
180x3 pesueApY | 00T-0022-SSD | OZETS00THOZETIO  |00°006T 1S | ve0zfri/e0 | vT0T/SO/E0 | 20211410 001-007Z S350 ¥ Apaquin 's903
JUEISISSY BUISINN Payilia) | 009-b1ZT-HIY | OZEISO0EL0ZHETO  |00°ZSES 1S | weozmt/eo | vzoz/so/en | veoz/ii/io M9 109 "009-+T12T HIV | BURNL ‘WISUNZQ
dueuld JO S3dIDULY | T0-00ZT-NId 0ZETS0048022TT0  |00°06T2 1S | #Z0Z/€Z/S0 | +202/81/50 | +Z0e/11/10 10-002T NI4 7 ueybeay ‘ueag
07ZISHEE60CCTI0  [00ETL IS | #e0z/€e/s0 | +e0z/81/so | veoe/Ti/io Suijuo SWI 15T 00T $02T 303 V 9isse) “Apoweq
S0M1/SIBIPPOL/SJuRiul dvad| 0OT-H0Z1-303 | DETISPEEE0ZCIIN  |00'6ETC 1S | vbeoz/ee/s0 | vZ0Z/8T/S0 | b2OR/T/I0 00T +02T 2 v a1sse) ‘Apousreq
uonensiuiwpy pue uoisiuadng|  00T-£022-303 | 0ZCISPAE60ZZIS0  |00°S95E IS | ¥z0T/£2/S0 | +Z0T/R1/S0 | +T02/11/10 00T £02Z 303 V 9ISSE) "Apouwueq
0TZTSPEEB0ZZTI0  [00°€TL 1S | vzozfee/so | veozfifse | veoe/11/10 auljue Bur} IST 0T €02 3% v aisse) ‘Apouseg
pueg zzef| GOE-HO0T-dNW | OZETSO0S90ZTITO |00 'vLST 1S | veoz/ee/s0 | vEoe/81/Se | peoz/Tiiig 00E-+00T dNi 927 uopueig ‘pismoydeqnz)
MET [RUIILD | 1-0702-04D 0TETS00£S02TTTI0 004902 1S | vTOT/ET/S0 | b20e/81/S0 | ¥Z0Z/11/10 10-0202 (D Y Jaguua( esing
3ISN{ PURLLD 0) UCIRNPONUT | O0T-000T-0dD OZETS00LSOZITIO  |00HI0T 1S | pE0Z/PT/E0 | T0T/SO/E0 | veoT/11/10 00T-000T 14D Y 49jluuaC "fasing
uoisiuadng Jo saididulid | 00€-0722-19W | OZETS00ZS0ZZTT0  [00°69+T 1S | veor/ee/s0 | +Z0T/8T/SD | HROZ/1T/10 00£-0222 LOW ugjy Aus[ ‘umoug
1 buipeay Jiseg|  10-0080-Q3Y OZETS00S902STT0 |00 +PSe 1S | ¥e0z/€e/s0 | +T02/81/80 | +TOZ/11/T0 10 0080 pa: Buey 3s0Y “weybuug
uepiuya). |eapsly Adusbiewl| 00£-107Z-SW3 | 0ZETIS00££02#T10 |00 H4+9 IS | vzoz/ee/se | veoe/81/sD | vT/IT/io 2N 00E-TOZZ SW3|  USYIEy eylueweS ‘urweuely
Buiunoxy Jo siejuswepund | 0OT-0TZT-LO¥ | 0ZETS00/S0Z21T0  |00°S£2Z 1S | be0z/ee/So | vT0R/BIISO | veoThi/io 00T-0T2T LoV umeq Jauyiesy ‘doysig
11 92usps segndwia)|  00T-TT0Z-1S3 | OZETSO0THOZITIO  |00°0S9E 1S | ye0T/Ee/so | vEOT/RI/SO | $E0/1T/10 00T 10T 12 umos) "kanfeg
WelsIsSy BUISINN PIYRID | 009-+1ZT-HIV 0ZETSO0EL0TFTIO |00 SLbb 1S | ¥Z0e/P1/E0 | $T0Z/S0/E0 | b20e/1T/10 JeAUID ‘G 009-bTZT H1Y 98Uy Aol “ually
SIUDWILLO) 3111 UONIRG | BUWIEN UoHIDS ON 19 junowy aseqg | aseg >«M MM_S aeg pu3 | =3eq pers aseq auen
veictilo FOITION ALNIKIOD
Buipu3 jjosAed 10} poday pieog puadns DDA ATTIVASIONITI]

30



4999ds Jo sjejualepUng | 009-TOOT-HJS | 0ZEIS00S90ZT1IT0  |00'H90T 1S | ve0z/ET/S0 | ¥T0e/81iSe | beoz/11/10 009-T00T HdS Of euey ‘PPUajIs

Juelsissy BuisINN PRILRD | Z0-bTZT-HIV 0ZEISO0EL0ZHTTO |00 00ER 1S | vZ0T/PT/E0 | $ZOT/SO/E0 | $202/TT/10 geT ‘eI Z0+T2T H1Y uesng 8119j0) “sueads

SOURIBIO] g UOISUSWIQ W0SD)|  0ST-H0TC-QYD | OZETS00THOZETIO  |0D'TESE IS | ¥Z0Z/£T/SO | HTOT/8TISO | veOe/iT/io 0ST-402Z OV 3 Ined ‘yuws

Bunyeig souoIPaR | 0SE-E0ZT-AVD | OZEISO0THOZETTO  |00'928T 1S | veoe/ez/so | vzoefellso | v20Z/TI/10 0S£-€02T QvD uapsy Aey ‘yiws

1 90uang ssyndwio) | QOT-T10T-1SD 0ZETSO0THOZITI0  [00°01SE 1S | »Z0T/ET/SO | bROT/BIISO | ¥202/T1/10 001 TT0T I1SD A Ppoy ‘auoawis

A39J8S [RLISNpUY|  QOE-B0ZY-IND | O0ZETS00THOZETI0  |00°858 1S | vZ0Z/Pi/E0 | ROT/SOME0 | v20Z/1T/T0 00£-80ZT LNO }uled ‘uewianyag

0ZETSOTEL0TZLTO  |00°S5AT IS | $e0z/81/10 | ¥Z0T/T1/10 | b20e/€0/10 LQ1 Y3IHSTATY dINOT HH OF uejy pleyary ‘zjes

SSSUBM | 00T-0001-3dH 0Z€TS004S0ZTTI0  |00'8Z6 IS | pe0T/PT/E0 | b20T/s0fE0 | +Toe/T1/10 00T-000T 3dH £ Auoyauy ‘epriy

UieRH AJUNWLIO) pue |BuosIad|  00T-00T-3dH | 0ZETS00£50Z1T10  |00°9581 1S | ve0z/se/S0 | ve0T/8u/s0 | be0T/1i/10 00T-£007 JdH [ Auotguy ‘epny

UieaH Ajunwuio) pue jeuosiad|  TOT-€00T-3dH | 0ZETS00£S0ZITTO 0079581 1S | veoe/ez/so | vT0e/8TISO | ¥Z0Z/11/10 TOT-E00T 3dH [ Auoupuy ‘epny

Sjesoy) 21eiBalo)| OE-TOOT-dNW | 0ZETS00S90ZITIO 006947 1S | proz/ee/so | v20e/81/Se | v20z/13/10 00E-TO0T dNiW 3 uAjus( “ayjeoy

'50d 1|3 ‘9915 P MYIWS| TIE-00ZT-0TM | QZEISO0THOZETIO  |00°9bET 1S | +702/STi0 | veoTiveib0 | +20T/11/10 IT£ SoU9S O W ydiog ‘uosgoy

OZETSOOTHOZETTO |00 16€ IS | bZ0Z/STHO | $ZOTEMNMD | YTOT/TT/10 TT€ SaUSS M daud NINW W ydiog ‘vosqoy

'S0d 1814 '1991S Pl MYWS| TOE-00ZT-QIM | OZETSO0THOZETTO  |00'RLST 15 | ve0e/ri/es | v20z/so/e0 | +Zoz/11/10 TOE S35 0 IM ydasog enysof ‘yoeoy

0ZETSO0THOZETIO  |00'620 1S | #T02/PT/E0 | vT0T/S0/E0 | H20T/TT/10 doig NN T0€ SUBS OIM ydasog enysof ‘yoeoy

SHOA [BI20S O) UDIDNPOUIUL|  OST-DO0T-IMS |  0ZEISO0S90ZTITO 004907 1S | veoT/ee/so | v20e/81iSo | ve0z/11/10 0ST-000T IMS 003Gy 4Ny

wa)shs Buigessdo XINN|  00€-0022-050 | 0ZETSO0THOZETT0  |00°0Z62 1S | ve0T/ET/S0 | +20T/81/50 | +Z0Z/TH/TO 00£-0022 05D 9 weliw ‘asseny

OPSTSEOED0EZETO  |9£°9667 av | #Z0Z/8L/I0 | HTOT/ET/TO | groz/iefzn 9'66v$ © sAep 9 av 3uBl D3UBY ‘Ul

1 48NS DY | 0ST-0TOT-1MY | 0ZETIS00S90ZTIT0  |00°01EC 1S | vroz/ee/so | vZ02/81/S0 | bE0Z/T1/10 0ST-0T0T L3V Z j2eypey ‘uos|

I ASAMINS Y| 009-0TOT-LdY | OZEIS00S90ZTEI0  |00'0TET AS | pTOZ/€T/S0 | b202/81/S0 | #T0Z/TT/TO 009-0T0T LAV Z [3eyoey ‘uos|g

eboA|  10-0£0T-HIV 0ZETSO0EL0ZFTT0  |06'2802 1S | #T02/€T/S0 | +e0T/81/S0 | #20e/11/10 qet/enee] 10-0607 HIVY SARY UALIBIY ‘UILION

jJuelsissy Buisiny paye)|  T0-#TZI-HIV 0ZEISO0EL0ZHTTO  [00°00ER IS | ¥20T/I/E0 | ¥20e/S0/€0 | vzor/11/10 ge7 ‘[eo) 10-b12T Y UUAT BIGD “udssiN

0ZETSOOTHOZETIO  [00'9bY IS | vZ0THT/E0 | +20T/S0/£0 | veoz/1i/i0 ¥0 S3UaS qIM dasd BN ¥ Ined ‘[oyaiy

'S0d 18t ‘13915 Pl MYIWS|  +0-00ZT-QTM OTETS00THOTETIO 009492 1S | ve0Z/pT/E0 | broTiso/en | vede/11/1o 0 SBL8S aIM ¥ Ined ‘[N

deig JSISsY |23usg pasiasdng|  70-Z0¢T-v1a 0ZETSO0EL0ZPTTO  |0S bHST IS | ¥e0T/ee/s0 | keuz/eo/so | veoefzifio 1201UID 20-202T V1d JNUNH uebiop Ay

1qe1 Aydeibopey) (Rjusg| €0-+02Z-V1G | 0ZETSO0EL0ZHITO  |00°FSHT 1S | be0T/€T/50 | b20T/RT/S0 | +T0T/IT/10 ge1 £0-+022 V10 JAUNH uebiOp ‘@AW

1 gen AydesBolpey [euad|  20-b0Z2- V10 OCETSO0EL02HTTI0 |00 ¥SHT 1S | ¥T0Z/€Z/S0 | bT0T/81/S0 | ¥e0e/11/10 Q%71 Z0-#022 1Y1a 433Uny uebIop ‘AW

GeT I1 bunsissy spisiieyd | 10-€022-1W10 | 0ZETSO0E0ZvIT0  |00°FSHT 1S | veor/ee/so | ¥Z02/81/S0 | vROTZ/IT/T0 987 10-£072 1V1Q Jajuny uebiop ‘aihn

19e7 Aydeiboipey [PYuSQ| TO-+0ZZ-WVIQ | OZETSO0EL02HTIT0  |00°FSHT 1S | pr0T/€T/S0 | v20T/81/S0 | +Z0T/1T/T0 921 10-b0eC Y10 13Ny uebiop ‘S1Al

1qet AydeiBoipey jewaq| 04022 W10 | OZETSO0EL0CHTIO |00 ¥SHT 1S | +zZ0Z/€T/S0 | vROT/8T/SO | vZ0T/IT/T0 97 $0-b07Z W JUNH uebioy ‘BIAR

qe7 11 sainpadald Get [eyuaq|  T0-TOTZ-TVI0 | OZETS00E£0ZH110  |00'T8TZ IS | beoz/ee/so | vzoe/er/se | veor/Ti/io 9e7 10-102Z V1 Juny uebiop ‘@uAn

0ZE1S00€402P 110 |00° 1812 1S | veoz/ez/s0 | v20T/RT/S0 | vToz/TT/TO oo weibaly Bugsissy |ejusg Ja3UN ueBIok ‘2141

0065008018220  |00°000T 1S | +T02AT/EY | vEOEMPT/ZT | $20T/10/10 SaINQ 10Ul uire4 sndwe) 207 Q PelIIM NN

0bSTSB0E00ETETO |0V 2652 av | vT0T/BI/I0 | +Z02/50/10 | 20T/T0/10 Aep sad 5E'666% @ SARQ ¢ X Qv d Saulef ‘TMIRISON

OZETSOTEEQTILTO  [00°0SZ 1S | ¥20Z/8T/T0 | £20e/S1/2T | £zoz/Sifet Buuiely Buipism J18vS SUel BSRUSL | ‘UljOl

Ge 11 Bunsissy spisieyD|  20-€022-1V10 | 0ZETSO0EL02HTTO  [00'HSHT 1S | veoz/er/se | veoz/8i/se | vz0T/11/i0 47 20-£0¢¢ TV1a aunsuy ssjiey ‘el

G2 11 Saunpedoyd get jeued| 20-T0ZZ-TVIg | O0ZETS00EL0Z+TI0 |00 T8TE 1S | ¥e0e/ee/so | #202/81/50 | #20T/11/10 geT Z70-102Z V14 BuNsi 3914 ‘uen

Bulim [eot0aj3 | p0E-902T-313 | 0ZETSO0THOZEIT0  [00°9492 1S | veor/ez/so | ve0Z/RT/SO | vZOZ/TT/T0 00Z-9071 313 CNY USAZIS ‘DjoARiel

T A¥DLPIF “1snpur diseg|  10-0027-3714 0ZETS00THOZETTO  |00'TSES 1S | $Z0Z/ET/S0 | vT0T/81/s0 | v20T/11/10 10-002T 313 OO USASIS "Hjone|el

11 ABOjoIg 1eBUBD|  10-ZC0T-0Id 0ZETSDOLSOZITIO  |00°0ver 1S | ve0z/ee/se | ¥E0e/B1/S0 | $e0Z/11/10 10-2001 019 bre.d pjeuoq ‘pneudan

0ZETS00£502TTT0  |087508 1S | vroT/eT/so | veoT/er/so | veoe/1iiie siNoH qe uadg Bies) pjeuoq ‘pneuda

1 ABojoisAyd 18 Awoleuy|  z0-£00T-018 0ZETSO0LSOZTITO  |00°978T 1S | #T02/EE/S0 | be0T/8T/S0 | H20T/11/10 20-£001 OI8 UuAT Apuam, ‘Asjoquie]
ObSTSBOE00ETETO [0S 6IET av | v202/81/10 | #202/60/10 | $20Z/50/10 Aep s3d 09°96¢$ © shep ¢ x Qv ( ess|aW ‘u

31



JOOYIS JDWIING=SS ‘SNOBUe||DaSIHAI=| A
adeai SuNWWOD=TIN INOARY UONEIBA=YA ‘PEOMBAQ=AQ ‘Puadns

juspIsaid
@k

1dwex3 SHNS=ST ‘puadns=0s/1S ‘SIuaWISINqISY djgexe] =4] ‘Jejnday=1y

sadAj wie3,
JUBUIJ pUB SBIIAIDS SSAUISNG JO dA
A $50Y Ayiey
(9 ww
ov'60L'VZT $
1 95UB0I-B4d 4ax0Ug 15 |83y  00E-00ZT-v3Y OZETSTHEEOTTFTO  |00'8E6Y 1S | v202/20/50 | ¥T02/L0/S0 | ¥2OT/T1/10 00€-002T ¥3d UUAT [042D) SRUYDIRPOIM
OTITS0TE00EHET0  |0Q'STE 1S $Z0Z/8T/T0 | €£202/91/21 | €T0T/91/11 9T/2T HQ Py Ut WUl Y eieg ‘Uosweljim
OTTTSOTEQOEHETO  |0D'0SCT 1S | vZ0z/8T{T0 | $20Z/TT/I0 | +e0z/e0/10 TT/T-8/T 10 PIY Ul wiiaiu] ¥ BIDUEG ‘UOSWRNM
OTTISOTE00EHETO  |00°092T 1S | ve0e/eY/10 | +Z07/S0/10 | +20Z/70/10 S/1-7/1 40 piy Ui WUy v Bd ‘UOSLUBIHIM
11 Buunoddy sjeipawiaiul|  00§-2722-LOV 0TETS004502ZT10  [00°'814T 1S | peor/ee/so | veoe/Bl/SO | ¥20e/TT/T0 00€-2222 LV suaty Aueg ‘DM
3|qBsul PuiM|  00€-C00T-dMi | OZETSO0S9OZITIO  |00'9bEC IS | ¥T0/ET/SC | bTOT/B1/S0 | ¥20T/TI/T0 00€-Z00T dNiW v dijitd ‘Adteym
GyD0InY T 3e4Q paply dwod| 00g-002T-avD 0ZETS00THOZETTO  |00°0267 1S +202/€2/50 | +Z02/81/50 | v20Z/11/10 00£-002T Qv piaeg 8|4y “Jazng uep
Suipelon/saies|  00£-072T- il 02€1500£507ZT10 |00 0LEE 1S | peoT/ee/so | veoT/er/se | #2oe/11/10 00€-072T DI ¥ U2AIS “PMS
PV 35414 (BLOSNPUT|  OOE-TEZT-HTV 0ZETSO0EL0THTI0  |00°OTTT IS | ve0zfe1/E0 | PZO0T/SO/E0 | bZOTITT/IO 3P TOE-12ZT H1Y Y UBA3IS ‘BamS
11 "2PAID LUSISOM AIOISIH| - 00S-TOOT-SIH 0Z£1S00S90Z11TO  |00+90T 1S | beoefez/so | ve0e/erisn | peoz/10/10 00S-1007 SIH ypualg zuted ‘ueddng

32



20-0060 43N ‘Z0-6060

ONI ‘T0-6060 ONI '+7/92/1 pasul OPETS00S907STIO  |00'0089 AO | $202/81/S0 | $20Z/8T/S0 | £202/91/80 PEOMIAD $2dS/LTY W ueaf 15104

009-+00T 3dH $2/92/1 paojua 0FETS00/50ZITIO  |00°004T AQ | 20Z/10/20 | £202/S1/21 |  £T0T/91/80 peO3AQ dSHT/VIEL 3 SEJOUIN ‘USl
10-+00T+10T

-£00T*10T-T00T 939 $Z/97/T paisiug OPEIS00/5021110  |00°0058 AO | ¥ZOT/T0/20 | +T0T/10/20 | +202/11/10 PeOHBAQ dSHTVHET SUION A3 ‘Ueusadsay
001-0021'10-907Z 05 1-8022 10

1022 10-9021 VD +2/92/1 paIsius OPETSO0THOTETTIO  |05°08£21 A0 | ¥202/10/20 | v20Z/10/70 | +20T/11/10 PEOHSAD $ZdS/ETvA aliely aURI0Q ‘ejeq

23] sugned

P3 |, Ja1eyd-0D) 130 +2/92/T paisiug 0FE€TS00S90ZTTI0 |00°0594 AO | v20Z/81/50 | T0T/81/50 | £T0T/91/80 PROLISAQ dSHE/VAET epuewly ‘uetladssS 00D

Jaunsesl | O $Z/97/T paisiul 006TS0T600V9810  |00°0041 1S | $20T/81/S0 | +e0T/81/50 | €20Z/91/80 AUnseas | uolun 1918 107 “BRIOUD
£0-Z00T ONI '08-£00T

NYC ‘0ST-100T ON3 +2/9Z/1 pasiuz OPETSO0S0ZTITI0  |00'00vS AQ | v202/81/S0 | ¥202/81/50 | £202/91/80 PROHSAD $2dS/E2V: WY 107 ‘aNouD
20T-6060

9N3 ‘00T-6060 ON3 ¥Z/92/T pasaiug OVETS0059075110 |00°0041 AO | vZ0E/10/20 | £20T/S1/21 | €£202/91/80 PEOMB3AQ b2dS/E7VA Ja4eA 10T 230U
101

-800T-00T-800T HL $2/97/T pasaiug OPEIS00/5021TIO  |00°0089 AQ | PTOT/PT/E0 | $TOT/¥T/E0 | #Z0T/11/10 PROMIAQ dSHT/VAEZ W umeq) ‘siaquiey)

20-b00T*10-+00T 014 $7/92/T paJajug OPETS00£$0ZTTT0 (007002071 A0 | +Z0T/10/20 | $202/10/c0 |  £T0¢/91/80 PROMSAQ dSHZ/vdER 7 une ‘Ase)
Z0'T0°TST40ST/00T

-800T OI8 ¥2/92/1 pasa3 ObETS004S02TIT0  |00°0542T AQ | be0T/10/20 | $20Z/10/20 |  ¥T0T/TT/T0 PROMUBAQ dSPEIVAET Aejy uesng ‘esd( Asje)
9T T-T1L16-0TT

UNN‘00T-ZOOTHTIY $2/9T/1 ooz OPETS00EL0ZPTI0  |00°6ZT61 AQ | bT0T/BT/SO | TOT/BT/S0 |  #202/11/10 PEOUIAD dSHT/VHET 918 e _ULY ‘Yonig

001-000Z NG b2/92/1 passiug ObETS00ZS0ZTTTO  |00'00TS AQ | %202/ST/20 | ¥Z0Z/51/70 | £202/91/80 PROIBSAD dSH2/VHET Inedag juaauip “As|joug

DZEISTFEEOTIFIO |00°00S 1S | v202/10/20 | +202/30/10 | +Z0OT/B0/T0 | 1S91-9Y ¥ Wexa/m §S4 1y 8 997 Bp1 ‘yorug -ajhog

£-0T2T ‘€-QT2T ¥NN $Z/97/T paiapg ObET500€£07TI0  |00°006TT AQ | $T0Z/BT/SO | HTOT/BI/SO | #20T/TT/10 PROMBAQ dSHT/VAET 'Y BUNSHYD ‘uojybnog
ZO'TO-PTZTIE09-4TZT 40

-HIZTP0'C0-PTZT HIV bE/92/T possyug ObETSO0EL0TPTI0 |0S'2I8ET A | v20Z/S0/€0 | #20Z/S0/€0 | €20T/TT/0T PROUSAD dSH2/V4ET UUY BusLYD ‘SapAelg
Z0-700T'+0

-800T-Z0-800T HiW +Z/92/1 paJajul OPETS004S0CTITIO  |00'S258 ANO | be02/10/20 | v20e/10/20 | ¥20Z/IT/10 PROMEAQ dSHE/VHET J1ojhe] A3iS3M pPRIg
001-0160° 101

-902T:007-90Z1 HiW vZ/97/1 pasaw3 OPETS00£5021110  |05°¢88% AQ | PTOT/T0fC0 | ¥20T/I0/20 | #20Z/11/10 PeOIIBAQ dSPE/v4ET v Alew e
1-0£2Z:00T-4022 ‘1-£022'001-102°T

-90Z11-2021v1d $7/92/1 pesug OPETSO0E/0ZPTTO  |00°0089 AO | ¥T0Z/B1/S0 | #20Z/81/S0 |  vT0T/1T/10 PeOPSAD dSHZ/VAET 300N ASSpuA] ‘Zjasg
20

-Z00T4T0-200T QIWHD £2/92/1 palaaug OrETS00LS0ZTTTO  |00°059Z AO | beoz/sifeo | beoefotfeo £202/91/80 PROLIBAQ dSHZVHE7 1 pieydy nv

9-0T271 ¥NN $/97/T pasaug ObETS00E/02PTT0  |00°0565 AQ | ¥TOT/8T/S0 | $T0T/8T/SO | #202/11/10 ~ PeOMBAQ dSHT/VHET uuy Asoel] ‘apuy

ajeqg
sjuRAUIWo) JPL UOIDAG| SWeN oIS ON 1D unowy aseq aseqy Aed 1se1 ajeq puz ajeq pAs 52 awenN
L LAP XA AVITION mmw_m,mﬁéu
Buipu3 |j01Aed 10} Joday pieog puads DDAl AGFASIONTC

33



10-200T 208 2/92/1 passug OPETS00S90ZTTI0  |00°0552 AO | +202/10/20 | €202/51/CT £202/91/80 PeCHSAD dSET/VAET 4 paeipry ‘probuely

009-200T HW +2/92/1 pasaiugy ObE1S00€£024TT0  |00°0852 ANO | bZ0Z/81/S0 | bTOZ/B1/S0 |  +20Z/11/10 PEOMBAQ dSHE/VHEL 4 paeory ‘plobuepy

0ZETS00THOZELTO  |0S'89ET 1S | vZ0e/60/50 | vZOT/STHO | $202/TT/10 Z1E S9URS 0 IM 130y umB)f ‘Youkl

00T-5021 OSN3 +2/9Z/1 poisiug OPETS00S902TTT0  |00°0SS¢ AO | $202/10/20 | £202/S1/21 £20¢/91/80 PEOMBAQ dSPZ/V4ET a1 ‘poomae
9-1TZZ ¥NN ‘0S5T-000T

H1v:plo0) wibld e $7/92/1 pasejug OFETS00EL02HTI0  |00°001S AO | 20Z/BT/SO | bC0Z/RT/SO |  +ZOT/TI/T0 PEOLAAQ dSHZ/VHET of Ayge) ‘spiexua]
6-012T ‘80-0T77 ‘01'6'8°L'9

‘T-0TZT YN $2/9Z/1T paseiug ObETSO0EL0CHTIC 0052901 AD | ¥TOT/BTISO | $TOZ/BT/SO | #202/11/10 peOMBAQ dSHT/VAET uAT eaeS “1Zua1ba]

JUBPISSI VO $Z/97/T PRISIug 006TS0T600P98T0  |00°0SSZ 1S | ¥202/10/70 | £202/51/Z1 £202/91/80 WApIsald uolun asiaq Adet) ‘ea

952219y WRID +7/97/1 pase] 006T1SH6E60ZZT90  |00°001S AO | HTOT/ET/SO | $TOZ/ET/SO | £T0T/91/80 PROLIAAQ dSPZ/VHET 7 Awwe) ‘yeibpuen

00615H6£607CT90  |00°0041 AO | YTOT/ET/S0 | $TOT/ET/S0 | +Z0Z/11/10 J03euipio0) wieifold 7 Awwe ] YesBpue)

08-S00T 3HL $Z/92/1 pas9yua ObE1S00S90ZTTI0  |00'006 AO | vz0Z/10/2Z0 | £202/S1/71 £707/91/80 PROMIAQ dS#Z/YHET ¥ PIAR( ‘se3sanyl
T0-0/2T:T0-0622°10-0£22°10

-0922°10-0¥2T QLY $2/9Z/T0 Pa1alua OVETSO0THOZETTO |00'0095T AO | b20Z/PLIE0 | $20T/P1/E0 | ¥20Z/IT/I0 PROMIAG HTIS/ETVH piemp3 NUYLY ‘exjapnoy
9-21TeSYETT

-T2 '€°9-TTZT ¥NN $T/97/1 paiag OPETS00EL0ZP1T0  |00°0ST9T AQ | 20Z/8T/50 | vC0T/8T/S0 | +20Z/11/10 PROMBAQ dSHT/VIEY ang Jaguy ‘Uoymouy

001-0Z¢Z ¥NN +7/92/1 pauisiug ObETSO0EL0ZPTTO  |D0'0S8 AO | ¥Z0Z/81/S0 | vZ0Z/81/S0 | v20Z/11/10 PEOMBAD dSPE/VAEZ BULY JBIE3H ‘UPnejgou)|

00£-6001 NOIE +2/92/1 pasajug OPETS00ZS0ZITI0 |05'2T0L AO | TOT/T0/T0 | +202/10/20 | €70T/91/80 PEOMBAQ dSHT/VHET Hagoy Yoy ‘Buly

¢0-100T Q0Ig $2/92/1 pasaj3 OPETS00LS02TII0  |00'004T AO | $TOZ/T0/20 | £20T/51/2T £202/91/30 PROUBAD dSPE/VHEZ Uuya ‘Hosuyor

10-1001 04D $Z/92/10 peaug ObETSO0ZS0ZTTIT0 |05 29%h AQ | H202/10/20 | #202/10/70 | £202/91/80 PROUBAD dSPZ/VYHEL 3 MIUTIRIA ‘fuor
08-010Z°10

-082¢ 10-092¢ DD +2/92/1 paiaiuz OVETS00LS0ZIET0 [0S'6TTH AO | H20Z/10/20 | $20T/10/20 | €20Z/91/80 PROMOAQ dSHT/VAET W Uetieuof ‘13qqnH
00T-8007 NOIS 20T

-8001°107-800T QOIE $Z/97/1 pasdiuz 0bETS00L502TTI0 (057956 AO | PTOUVTIED | PTOT/PT/E0 | #202/1T/10 PEOLBAQ dSYT/VALT J|OYDIN uaWE) “pIofieH

0ZETSOTEEQTTPTO |STTET 1S #202/10/20 | ¥202/v2/10 ye0e/re/10 Buurel)] Buipm SNYUYD Sawer oS ‘Jegnis
00€-S0ZT 310

-pSTC 10-£022 L13 $2/92/10 pausiua OFETSOOTHFOZEIT0  |00°SZE9 AO | 202/10/20 | bede/10/20 | £202/91/80 PeoMBAQ HTIS/ETV4 uojuag uaydais ‘uosg
W) $5355Y 03-6001

YW [10-£007 HLW $2/97/1 passig ObETS0045021TT0  |00°0019 AQ | ¥ZOZ/BT/SO | ¥ZOT/BT/SO | #202/11/10 PROLBAQ dSHT/VIET 19BN PIAR( “UDSILIES)
06T-00T179'2-21¢T ‘€'2-112L

UNANTOT-T00T HTV b2/92/1 paisiug ObETSO0EL0THTT0  |00°00£8T AO | b20Z/81/S0 | 20Z/81/S0 |  ¥202/11/10 PROMSAD dSHZ/V4ET UuAT atiobieyy ‘odspuely
0SE

D0ZT°Z0'T0 SOURS LW #2/97/10 33U OVETSO0TYOCETTO  |00°0058 AO | v202/10/20 | bC0Z/10/20 | £z0z/1T/01 PROLIBAQ) HZJS/ETVA [PRUIIN 1005 X0
NI T0-0€¢2 00T-082 1 10-0bZT 10

-0T2T:007-020T 10V +2/92/1 paisiug ObEIS00/SOZITTO |05°0826 AO | BTOZ/T0/20 | vTOT/T0/20 | £202/91/30 PROMBAQ dSPT/VHET aey Jaquy 04

34



90£'101-0001 018 bz/92/T passiug ObET1S00S0ZTIT0  |00°0642T AO | vZoT/10/20 | %20Z/10/20 | £20T/91/80 PEOMIAQ dSPZ/VET UIAZS d13 L1BpacayPs
Ao
0ZEISERGEQTIFIO 007097 1S | $202/10{/20 | $Z0T/02/10 | +Z07/0Z/10 | ind/neaing-juwadw] Jaaug y 66219 “xapsuyps
Aunos
0CEISTHEEOTTYID |00°091 1S | PTOT/T0/C0 | $TOT/LTIT0 | #T0T/LI/T0 2feSETUWAIGWT SN v 66215 "saprauLps
10
-£102'70-1T0Z AHd ¥Z/92/10 p34ju3 0PETS00LSOTITTO 000058 AQ | b202/10/20 | ¥202/10/20 | vZ0T/11/10 PROURAD dSYZ/VIET M ouwoq ‘yesies
10T-100T
HdS '009-T00T HdS +2/9¢/1 pataiug 0b£1S00S90ZT1T0 000015 AO | Z0Z/B1/50 | %20e/31/50 | E£70T/91/80 PeOLRAQ dSYE/YHET “d S210[3Q ‘UosuIgoY
8L'9'SY'ETT-1TeT
WNNITOT-ZO0THIY $T/97/T paseiul 0bETS00EL0ZHTTI0  |00°STT6T AO | YTOT/BT/S0 | YZOT/8TISO | +20Z/11/10 PROMIAQ dSYT/VHEZ UuAT Jaquiy 'osHRq0Y
05T-0STT VIO vZ/92/1 pasaiu ObETISO0EL0THITO 000552 A0 | vZ072/81/50 | vZ0Z/8T/SO |  +20T/TT/10 PROPDAD dSYZ/VAET o UAIIeY “onRd
-0£ZT5Nq/001-0TZ THWI00T
-010Z LOW +Z/927/1 paiajug OpbETS00£50Z1TT0  |0000EST AO | ¥20Z/10/20 | ¥T0Z/10/70 | ve0z/1V/10 PROYBAD dSKEVIET D Uaqoy ‘aseay
00T-500T LI '80-T00T ON3
LIBYD-0D) WRAUSSISSY Z/9Z/T sl 0bETS00S890ZTTT0  |00°00201 AQ | bTOT/BT/SO | $TOT/ST/SO | £202/91/80 PEOHAAD dSYT/V4ET W Apaquiny Siepey
Awunod
0ZETSLPEEOTTHFIO  |00°002 1S | $202/10/20 | v202/4T/10 | ¥e0T/eT/10 Jjeseuwndw] Jaala ump3 A% ‘PId
10-400Z°001:Z0°10
-£00Z ND3 +2/92/10 paiajuz OPEIS00£S0TTTTO  |00°00Z01 AO | bT0T/10/20 | £20T/ET/S0 | €70T/60/10 PROBAD dSHE/VIET q bprd ‘Yasziad
10-6001 139 b2/92/1 pa.1oju3 ObE1S00£S0ZTTT0  |00'0STY AQ | ¥ROT/I0/T0 | $TOT/10/20 | #20Z/11/10 PROMAAQ dSHZ/VHET ey eyt ‘sdifliud
10-Z70T
SN ‘20-200T SN $2/92/1 paisiug DPETS00690ZTITO  |00°0058 AO | vZ0R/RT/SO | ¥20Z/8T/S0 |  £207/91/80 PROWDAD dSHZ/VAET UYo[ (PRI YRuaYdRd
86//865 000T
D05 ‘10-100Z D0S +2/92/1 passiug OFETSO0S902TTI0  |00°0592 AO | ve0Z/81/50 | H20T/RT/SO | £20Z/91/80 PROHAAQ dSHE/VHET Adiya( pasef ‘'Ussal0
Asejes
QTETS00E£02HIT0 007001 IN | yTOT/LT/N0 | ¥TOT/LZ/T0 | %202//2/10 HTAd SIRAW" (-ARd 099y 31BN JOJARL “SIBAW
#-T12T ¥NN ‘10T
-0222 ¥NN 'S'Z-ZTZ¢ YNN +2/97/1 ObETS00EL0ZPTTO  |00°0S42T AO | bz07/81/50 | vz0Z/8T/S0 | $202/11/10 PROMIAD dSYEVIET auely IojAe ‘SIaA
10-€12T°10-5TZ1°10
-#1ZT:10-907 T 4OV ¥7/92/1 pa1aiul ObETS00/S02TIT0  |00'84bT AO | bE0T/T0/20 | H20E/10/20 |  $T0Z/T1/1D PeOMaAD dSEEC/VHEL Q Pielim ‘Mol
10
-100Z'T0-0T0THLW +2/97/10 passiug OPETS00/S02TTI0 [0S ¢88Y AQ | ¥TOT/10/20 | ¥TOT/10/20 | #20Z/11/10 PROBAQ dSPT/NIET £ Atw3 ‘vebiop
ZIEI521TT
SALIBS QMW +2/92/10 palaue OVETSOOTHOZETTO  |0G'4Eh,L AO | YZOZfPT/E0 | ¥Z0Z/PT/E0 | €20T/TT/0T PEOUDAQ HTdS/ETVS e BSIBYL ‘IO
QZEISOTECOTTHIO |ZT°504 1S | v20e/10/20 | v20e/ve/10 | YZOT//I/10 Buwies 1 Bupem SNYvD 3Ll BS3IY L U0
0/T-£07T:0£1-502240£1-0022° 141
-T0ZT70£1-b022 25D +2/9/10 pasanug ObETSO0THOZETTD |05 PbEOT AC | vpTOT/T0/C0 | $TOT/10/20 | €20Z/SE/TT PROLPAQ HTJS/EZY LUy ASUeN ‘[Buueaan
I suomoung papuedxd|  051-602Z-V1d 0ZETSO0ELOTHFTITO |00 7SHT 1S | vege/s1feo | ve0ez/e0/z0 | vele/Lviio 531421 0§1-502Z Y14 SUISUY SARY ‘Ulely
1 suoipung papuedx3d|  151-507Z-¥1d Q2ETSO0EL0ZHTTI0  |00'HSHT 1S | $T0Z/ST/Z0 | $T0T/20/20 |  +Z0T/L1/10 297'qe7 1§7-5027 ¥1a BUnSLY BajAe) ‘uiep
10-00Z7 ' 10-0221:10-0822°10
-0bTT!T0-0921 OV $T/97/10 pasaiue OPETS00TPOZEITO (0070588 AO | pZOT/VI/E0 | vTOT/PT/E0 | £202/91/80 PROURAD PEdS/E2VA pIemp3 peipdry ‘e

35



JOOYIS JBWWING =SS ‘SNOJUR|DISINI=(IA judpisaig
a8eaI Buninwiwo)=1A ‘INoAed UCIIBIBA=YA ‘PEOBAQ=A0 ‘puadnis skuo Adeayaqg
1dwax3 SYNS=5T ‘puadns=os/1S ‘siusLuasinguulay sjqexe|=4| ‘Je|nday=3y
sadA| uted,
9dUBUL{ PUB SADIAIDG SSAUISNY JO dA
A~ ssoy Ayle)
/
\(6 \ll%
LE'BVO'LSS $
OTTISOTE00LVETO  |00°5022 1S | bzoe/10/z0 | bzoe/or/10 | $T0Z/L1/10 plY [BIDURULS JO JICT uialu] ¥ eed "UOSWeIIM
T0-T10T ISD $2-97-10 passiug OPETS00TP0CITIO  |00°0STH AO | ¥TOT/T0/C0 | $20T/T0/Z0 |  £202/91/80 PEOHAAD FZdS/ETVA piuen ‘pesyEiiym
10-2222'10
-0972°10-052¢ NSD +2/92/10 pase OPETSO0THOZETIO |06°G0TH AO | $202/10/70 | $202/10/20 | £202/60/10 PEOUIAD #2dS/ETV 1ED ‘PRILANYM
1'2'S'Z-1121 YNN +2/92/1 pasajug OFETSO0EL0ZYTT0  |00°5466T AO | pe0e/81/S0 | v202/81/S0 | ¥TOT/TL/TO PROMAAG dSPT/VHET Q BljuRLUES “JARINYM
10-b522 113710-0027
LIWI'00E-20ZT 313 b2/97/10 pasejug OPETS00THOCETIO  |00°0089 AO | ¥TOT/T0/Z0 | bTOT/10/20 | +202/T1/10 PROUBAQ PTdS/EZY4 ualy 6219 ‘Isiybium
3NpaYas 3sINog 3SINODRLUNNDOLID
B WD 10§ SN |,PPY 104 003 0TZTS0S3S0T£810  [00°8£2 1S | vzoz/10/z0 | v20Z/ET/I0 | €TOZ/IET seINg |,PpY ume( ‘uosiem
NPAPS IS0 Elilve)
§ WNINDLIND 104 S30NQ |,PPY 10y 0119y 0TZIS0S8SOTZ810  |00'8ET 1S | beoe/10/20 | geoc/ogfer | €eoT/iniT BWNNOUNY SPNING |PPY ume( ‘uosiem
35IN00'WNIN2LIND)
01715058601£810 |00°8€T 1S | pE0Z/T0/20 | £202/91/¢T | £20T/€0/TT SINQ |,PPY UMeQ U0SIEM
3NPaLpPS 3sINoD JSINOBWNINILND
R WNNOLARD 104 SAONQ |,PPY 10§ 003y 0TZ150$85012870  |00°8€2 1S | v202/10/70 | v202/L2/10 | v20T/b1/10 sanng |,ppy UM ‘UOSIEM
103euplood
wbid T0T-T00Z ASd +T/92/1 P O¥ETS00S90ZTTI0  |00°00TS AO | bele/10/e0 | £20z/ST/el | £20T/T1/60 PROMAAG dSPT/VIET 1 'stieg-veqin
0
700Z°007-£00T HW $2/92/10 pasong OPETS004802TTT0 [0S Z€48 bTOT/BESC0 | bz/eT/en | +Z0Z/1L/10 PeOLdAG dSHT/VIEL @ sewoy) ‘jpuuny
10 el D
-97ZT°10-1221 YOV $Z/92/1 paiaju3 OPETS00ZS0ZTTTO  |00°0058 #202/10/20 | v202/10/20 |  €202/91/80 PROLBAD dSHT/VAET B|OLDIN JBJUUD( ‘SISUHLYY
ABanjeIRW buiptap|  00€-602T-43W 0ZETSO0THOZETIO |00°2SLC 1S | be0T/ET/s0 | pene/8u/so | ve0e/11/t0 00£-602T 13N Y pieq “ojke)
00T-€0Z7 10S $2/92/10 pasaug 0bETISO0THOTITIO 0070047 AO | YTOTATIE0 | bTOT/bT/E0 | £20Z/11/01 PeOLBAQ bTdS/EZVS W BRI ‘AIS
001-#0ZZ:00T
-£0TT T0-E02T dSD $2/92/10 paIsiug OPETSO0TPOZZTTO  [00°00FL AO | v20Z/PT/E0 | $20T/AT/E0 | €202/11/60 PEOURAD $ZdS/ETYS W 3|8l AI0lS
139 P12 1BNQ +2/92/1 pelajul OFEIS00S90ZTITT0  |00°00TS AO | +20T/81/50 | $T0T/81/S0 |  £T0T/S1/80 PeOUAAQ JSPT/VHET v Aanygar 1anequeds
10-STI0T Luv ‘08-600¢ )
1NV 10-6001 1V b2/92/1 paswg OPE£1S00S90ZTTI0 0000111 AO | ¥ZOT/81/S0 | veog/81/so | £207/91/80 PROPBAQ dSHT/VIEZ| BleW uouueys ‘umoig-14bIes

36



SUOISS240.d YI|eaH - [TH

S9IIAIBS
sseuisng 1 p3 SUINUBUOD - 83D

S20UB1IS [e120S
'3 Sy duly ‘SSIHUBWINY - SSIH

ssauLsNg g S3IUBIIS [_INIEN - GSN

uawdoEAag 2I0PIOM - J4M

STITS

puadis
0008 STOT-YZ0TAY
{(pates-o4d) puadns
000'VS ¥ZTOT-EC0TAY
00°5Z$
ST'TES
051ZS
8E°9TS
00'268%

a2)ey ajey
InoH 3pas) ,qel/AnoH

JuSpISAId

SN ASPHT g

i},.\@_vm\N\\ﬁ ;

92UBUI{ PUR S3IIAIS SSBUISNG 10§ JUIPIS3Id A

ssoy Ayiey

o

Jnoy 3pasd Aq uey Jsyied el Aunoy ue pied sue Aynoey swp-ped ‘s8uias gej ul,

121U99) emeno

SanIY
aim

CO_HNUDvm ynpy
141

uonleanpg ynpy
gsN

juawpedag

Suyea sevIsnJL o paeog €20 ‘8 Aenugag
syuawiuioddy jjeis/Aynoey swi-jed

1sijerads uonewsoju)

lleqaaseg S, USWOM - peo) pesH
Juelsissy qeq Sulplem

JolNAsy| 153

(uowisod |euoizippe) JoIn] |eUOISSD40.1d
3plY |euondnaIsy|

Anoey

uonisod

IsuaQ “ulo

24BN ‘OMOT

ueq ‘a31y

ep|iH ‘ezouids3
uedsiy ‘ueag
Aduep ‘Sppwiwy
Apuap ‘“Asjoquuet

aweyp aakojdw3

37



Action Item 11.1

Faculty Tenure Recommendation — Theresa Molln, Welding Instructor

Dr. Gary Roberts, Vice President for Academic Affairs and Dr. Shane Lange, Dean of
Workforce Development have completed their evaluations of Theresa Molln, Welding
Instructor. The tenure recommendation is attached.

Recommendation:

The administration recommends the approval of tenure for Theresa Molln, Welding
Instructor, as presented.

KPI 5: District Population Served

38



ILLINOIS

p At MEMORANDUM

COLLEGE

TO: Tracy Morris, President

FROM: Gary Roberts, Vice President for Academic Affairs
Shane Lange, Dean of Workforce Development

DATE: January 8, 2024

SUBJECT: Tenure Recommendation for Theresa Molin, Welding

Ms. Molln began her career at IVCC as a full-time faculty member for the Welding program in
January 2021. Before that, Ms. Molln also served as a part-time lab assistant (2017) and a part-
time instructor (2020). Ms. Molln is an IVCC graduate and holds two Associate degrees, one of
which is in Welding Production and the other in Engineering Technology, as well as several
certifications including, the American Welding Society's prestigious Certified Welding Inspector
Certification. Ms. Molln’s time at IVCC has been complete with what it takes to be a successful
faculty member and program coordinator. Whether it be providing training on behalf of the
Business Training Center, serving on workforce advisory committees, organizing, and running
welding academies (i.e., Spark), serving as an advisor to Women in Technology, or completing
professional development workshops (e.g., assessment), Ms. Molln has become the very essence
of what she most admired about IVCC as a student - a faculty member who “cares. . . [and will]
invest the time a student needs.” Ms. Molln has been just as active in the community, working with
the First Lutheran Church, the Boy Scouts of America, the 4-H Club, the Election Department for
Lee County, among others.

Ms. Molln’s student and supervisor evaluations truly represent an instructor who is committed to
student success. As one student writes, “[Ms. MolIn] reminds us of homework every day...and is
always willing to take time out of her day to help [us].” Another student similarly states: “[Ms.
Molln] doesn'’t just teach but listens to what you need help with within class or shop.” The
evaluations conducted by Ms. Molln’s supervisors are just as outstanding. According to Dr. Lange,
“I[Ms. MolIn] is gifted at providing support when it is needed. [She] is a humble person and students
feel comfortable asking her for the support that she provides.” Dr. Roberts further adds, “Ms.
Molln really incorporated all aspects of a good class session, by incorporating lecture, group
exercises, and lab work - all in the same session. Nicely done!”

Dr. Lange and Dr. Roberts are both in agreement that Ms. Molin meets the requirements for
tenure outlined in the IVCC Guidelines for Non-tenured Faculty Evaluation System.

39



Recommendation for Tenure
In a Teaching Position at
Illinois Valley Community College

Faculty Being Recommended for Tenure: Theresa Molln
Faculty Position: Welding Instructor

Tenure Appointment Date: Spring 2024

This recommendation is based on the following:
1. Exemplary Teaching Performance

Theresa has a strong desire to facilitate student success. She constructs lessons
that help drive students to experience the content. She uses great visual aids, well
developed competency -based lessons, and relevant industry exercises. Students
are engaged in the process, and the community/culture that Theresa fosters with
the welding students builds a strong and safe learning environment. She is very
knowledgably, and she does a great job of relating the content to students. Theresa
is able to understand where the student is and support them where they are.

The most important characteristic about Theresa is her level of care and
compassion for her students. She does whatever it takes to support student
learning. She takes student needs very seriously, and she even went as far as
making sure that students do not go hungry. The welding building now has a food
cabinet because of her.

2. Contributions to the College

Theresa developed the LMS content for all welding sections. Theresa played a
major role in the development of the Student AWS chapter. She participates in
numerous recruiting and outreach activities including IVCC Explore, Expos, and
high school visits. Theresa has designed and created several metal art projects for
raffles, giveaways, and gifts. Along with the exceptional effort that she puts into
the welding courses and programs, Theresa supports the efforts of the Business
Training Center. The welding lab space has undergone dramatic improvements
with layout, organization, and safety because of Theresa's efforts. She spends
countless hours in CETLA to better herself and the program processes. She is not
afraid to ask for support or give it when she can.

3. Contributions to the Community

40



Theresa is very engaged in community activities as well. She is very active with the
Boy Scouts of America. She has constructed flag stands, participated in
fundraising events, and supports all other activities. Theresa is very active with
her church and church community. Whether it is as a youth leader, as a choir
member, or host for a variety of events, Theresa does a great job supporting the
needs of her community.

4. Professional Involvement

Theresa is very connected to the national professional welding organization: the
American Welding Society. She is an American Welding Society Certified Weld
Inspector. She has participated in the AWS Instructors’ Institute several times. She
is also the Secretary and Treasurer for the local AWS chapter which allows her to
have input on welding processes and education.

Conclusion:

Theresa Molln is a dedicated and valuable member of IVCC. She cares about student
success and supporting local industry needs. Theresa engages in college activities, and
she supports a positive college culture. For the reasons stated above, I recommend
Theresa Millon for tenure.

Mo oy 2t 2024
Déan Name Date

Division
."/
St L %Af [~ 2f X%,
VPAA Name 7 Date -

Vice President for Academic Affairs

41



Action Item 11.2

Faculty Tenure Recommendation — Chrissy Boughton, Nursing Instructor

Dr. Gary Roberts, Vice President for Academic Affairs and Heather Seghi, Dean of Health
Professions have completed their evaluations of Chrissy Boughton, Nursing Instructor.
The tenure recommendation is attached.

Recommendation:

The administration recommends the approval of tenure for Chrissy Boughton,
Nursing Instructor, as presented.

KPI 5: District Population Served

42



ILLINOIS

VALLEY MEMORANDUM

COLLEGE

TO: Tracy Morris, President

FROM: Gary Roberts, Vice President for Academic Affairs
Heather Seghi, Dean of Health Professions
Sue Smith, Director of Nursing

DATE: January 8, 2024

SUBJECT: Tenure Recommendation for Christina Boughton, Nursing

Ms. Boughton began her career at IVCC as a full-time faculty member during the Fall semester of
2021. Ms. Boughton holds a Bachelor of Science and a Master of Science in Nursing, both from
Northern Illinois University. While Ms. Boughton’s full-time status began at IVCC in August of
2021, she was, at the time, not entirely new to the College. In fact, she has been both a student
and a part-time faculty member. Ms. Boughton received her Associates degree at IVCC in 2011.
And - she was the recipient of the Outstanding Part-time Faculty Award in May, 2021. Ms.
Boughton’s time at IVCC speaks very highly of her commitment to student success.

From committee work to professional development to community involvement, Ms. Boughton has
been involved in a multitude of activities associated with her role as a faculty member. As for
committees, Ms. Boughton has served on search committees, the ACEN self-study, as well as
taskforces associated with the Lab skills handbook and mentoring. Ms. Boughton has also been
involved in maintaining certifications for her profession (e.g., Advanced Cardiovascular Support,
Trauma Nurse Core Course, among many others). And - Ms. Boughton has been involved in the
surrounding community, serving as a guest reader at Douglas Pre-K and a volunteer at local Covid-
19 immunization clinics. Former Associate Vice President for Academic Affairs, Ms. Bonnie
Campbell, sums it up best: “I continue to be impressed with not just Chrissy’'s knowledge and
passion for her profession, but her continued drive to learn and grow with her students. IVCCis

very lucky to have her.”

Ms. Seghi, Ms. Smith, and Dr. Roberts are in agreement that Ms. Boughton meets the requirements
for tenure outlined in the IVCC Guidelines for Non-tenured Faculty Evaluation System.

43



Recommendation for Tenure
In a Teaching Position at
Illinois Valley Community College

Faculty Being Recommended for Tenure: Chrissy Boughton
Faculty Position: Nursing Instructor
Tenure Appointment Date: August 2024

Background:

Ms, Boughton began her career at IVCC as a full-time faculty member during the Fall
semester of 2021. Ms. Boughton holds a Bachelor of Science and a Master of Science in
Nursing, both from Northern Illinois University. While Ms. Boughton's full-time
status began at IVCC in August of 2021, she was, at the time, not entirely new to the
College. In fact, she has been both a student and a part-time faculty member. Ms.
Boughton received her Associates degree at IVCC in 2011.

This recommendation is based on the following:

1. Exemplary Teaching Performance
Mrs, Boughton was the recipient of the Outstanding Part-time Faculty Award in
May, 2021. Ms. Boughton’s time at IVCC speaks very highly of her commitment
to student success. Former Associate Vice President for Academic Affairs, Ms,
Bonnie Campbell, sums it up best: “I continue to be impressed with not just
Chrissy’s knowledge and passion for her profession, but her continued drive to
learn and grow with her students. IVCC is very lucky to have her.”

2. Contributions to the College
Ms. Boughton has been involved in a multitude of activities associated with her
role as a faculty member. As for committees, Ms. Boughton has served on
search committees, the ACEN self-study, as well as taskforces associated with
the Lab skills handbook and mentoring. Chrissy is the faculty advisor for the
Student Nurse Association, and has worked hard to build the membership since
taking over in 2022, With the help of her colleagues, she was able to help
sponsor an event called the “Spring Fling”, where nursing student and their
families were able to gather for dinner, games and comradery. Chrissy, along
with her SNA group have also participated in Red Cross Blood Drives, Spirit
Days, Health Fairs, SRSC Car shows, First Year Orientation, COVID Vaccine
clinics and Nurse Pinning events.

44



3. Contributions to the Community
Ms. Boughton has been involved in the surrounding community, serving as a
guest reader at Douglas Pre-K and a volunteer at local Covid-19'immunization
clinics. Chrissy was awarded the Daisy Award in 2021, proving her
extraordinary compassion, courage, integrity within the nursing profession.

4. Professional Involvement

Ms. Boughton has also been involved in maintaining certifications for her
profession (e.g., Advanced Cardiovascular Support, Trauma Nurse Core Course,
among many others). Chrissy is a member of Sigma Theta Tau and The
American Association of Critical-Care Nurses. Chrissy also maintains
professional certifications in the following;:

* BLS - Basic Life Support

s ACLS - Advanced Cardiovascular Life Support

e PALS - Pediatric Advanced Life Support

« NRP - Neonatal Resuscitation Program

» TNCC - Trauma Nurse Core Course

+ ECRN - Emergency Communications Registered Nurse

e MHFA - Mental Health First Aid

e NIH Stroke Scale Training & Certification

Conclusion:

Cathy Lenkaitis has proven herself to be a dedicated and skilled instructor who
exemplifies the Mission, Vision, and Core Values of Illinois Valley Community College.
Cathy is an asset to both the Division of Health Professions, and Illinois Valley

Community College.
Mrs. Boughton's tenure portfolio can be found here:

https //léltes google.com/view/caboughtonrn/home

C d J { /;/i“z_/:\ 1/25/2024

Heat’hex Se (7 Date
Dean of Héa lth Professions

e & 7// 1/25/2024
Dr. Gaxy/’hobert Date
Vlce Président for Academic Affairs

45



Action Item 11.3

Faculty Tenure Recommendation — Cathy Lenkaitis, Nursing Laboratory Instructor

Dr. Gary Roberts, Vice President for Academic Affairs and Heather Seghi, Dean of Health
Professions have completed their evaluations of Cathy Lenkaitis, Nursing Laboratory
Instructor. The tenure recommendation is attached.

Recommendation:

The administration recommends the approval of tenure for Cathy Lenkaitis, Nursing
Laboratory Instructor, as presented.

KPI 5: District Population Served

46



ILLINOIS

VALLEY MEMORANDUM

COLLEGE

TO: Tracy Morris, President

FROM: Gary Roberts, Vice President for Academic Affairs
Heather Seghi, Dean of Health Professions
Sue Smith, Director of Nursing

DATE: January 8, 2024

SUBJECT: Tenure Recommendation for Cathy Lenkaitis, Laboratory Instructor, Nursing

Ms. Lenkaitis began her career at IVCC During the Fall semester of 2021. Ms. Lenkaitis holds a
Bachelors of Science in Nursing from Northern lllinois University and a Masters of Science in
Nursing from Western Governor’s University. In her time at [VCC, Ms. Lenkaitis has played an
indispensable role in the Nursing skills lab, providing additional, more hands-on training to the
students that are enrolled in the Division of Health Professions. More recently, Ms. Lenkaitis was
instrumental in providing suggestions for the development of a new simulation lab (i.e., layout and
equipment needs). As far as college participation, Ms. Lenkaitis is very active in Nursing advisory
meetings, pinning ceremonies (as co-organizer), graduation pictures (as coordinator), as well as
various search committees (associated with the division). Ms. Lenkaitis also chairs the Nursing
Skills Lab Book Committee.

Ms. Lenkaitis’ passion for teaching is demonstrated by both her student evaluations as well as the
evaluations conducted by her supervisors. As one student states: “Cathy is an open book with
great knowledge.” She “puts in a lot of pre-work before lab to give the students a better learning
experience." This is underscored by Dr. Roberts: “Ms. Lenkaitis does an excellent job in helping
students in the Nursing lab. She is patient and kind and offers suggestions to students. |
particularly like how she demonstrates positive encouragement to them.” Ms. Seghi adds that,
“Ms. Lenkaitis is a very engaging instructor with her students. Students clearly feel comfortable
and supported while in the skills lab, and discuss objectives openly.”

As Ms. Lenkaitis notes in her tenure portfolio, she holds a strong passion for lifelong learning. This
is underscored by her successful completion of Excellent Online Teaching at IVCC, “Al - The
Future of Learning” at University of lllinois (at Springfield), and a host of workshops on simulation
strategies. Ms. Lenkaitis has even visited several other community colleges (e.g., Joliet, Heartland,
Lincoln Land, etc.) to see how they conduct their own simulation labs.

Ms. Seghi, Ms. Smith, and Dr. Roberts are in agreement that Ms. Lenkaitis meets the requirements
for tenure outlined in the IVCC Guidelines for Non-tenured Faculty Evaluation System.

47



Recommendation for Tenure
In a Teaching Position at
Illinois Valley Community College

Faculty Being Recommended for Tenure: Cathy Lenkaitis
Faculty Position: Nursing Lab Instructor
Tenure Appointment Date: August 2024

Background:
Ms. Lenkaitis began her career at IVCC During the Fall semester of 2021, Ms. Lenkaitis

holds a Bachelor’s of Science in Nursing from Northern Illinois University and a
Master’s of Science in Nursing from Western Governor’s University. In her time at
IVCC, Ms. Lenkaitis has played an indispensable role in the Nursing skills lab,
providing additional, more hands-on training to the students that are enrolled in the
Division of Health Professions.

This recommendation is based on the following:

1. Exemplary Teaching Performance
Ms, Lenkaitis’ passion for teaching is demonstrated by both her student

evaluations as well as the evaluations conducted by her supervisors. As one
student states: “Cathy is an open book with great knowledge.” She “putsina
lot of pre-work before lab to give the students a better learning experience."
This is underscored by Dr. Roberts: “Ms. Lenkaitis does an excellent job in
helping students in the Nursing lab. She is patient and kind and offers
suggestions to students. I particularly like how she demonstrates positive
encouragement to them.” Ms. Seghi adds that, “Ms. Lenkaitis is a very
engaging instructor with her students. Students clearly feel comfortable and
supported while in the skills lab, and discuss objectives openly.”

Cathy works with CETLA to get training in all areas as needed and is always
willing to help students, faculty and staff in anything they may need.

2. Contributions to the College
Ms. Lenkaitis was instrumental in providing suggestions for the development
of a new simulation lab (i.e., layout and equipment needs). Ms, Lenkaitis is very
active in Nursing advisory meetings, pinning ceremonies (as co-organizer),
graduation pictures (as coordinator), as well as various search committees
(associated with the division). Ms. Lenkaitis also chairs the Nursing Skills Lab

Book Committee,

48



3. Contributions to the Community

Cathy organizes an annual blood drive held on campus with the help of
students who graciously volunteer their time because of the strong relationship
they have built with her. She also arranges several food and supply drives for
area shelters. She created a “scrubs closet” in the nursing skills lab where
students and community can come in and take scrubs that she has collected
through donation to help lessen the cost of uniforms for current and past
students,

. Professional Involvement

Mrs. Lenkaitis holds a strong passion for lifelong learning. This is underscored
by her successful completion of Excellent Online Teaching at IVCC, “AI — The
Future of Learning” at University of Illinois (at Springfield), and a host of
workshops on simulation strategies. Ms. Lenkaitis has even visited several
other community colleges (e.g., Joliet, Heartland, Lincoln Land, etc.) to see how
they conduct their own simulation labs.

Conclusion:

Cathy Lenkaitis has proven herself to be a dedicated and skilled instructor who
exemplifies the Mission, Vision, and Core Values of Illinois Valley Community College.
Cathy is an asset to both the Division of Health Professions, and Illinois Valley
Community College.

Cathy’s Tenure Portfolio can be viewed here:
https://sites.google.com/view/cathystenureportfolio2023/teaching-and-
assessment/nursing - gKills-lab

s

A

g ¥
Dean of Healdfrof’éssions

1/24/2024
Date

G 2 folt i a0y

VPAA Naxﬁe Date
Vice President for Academic Affairs

49



Action Item 11.4

Faculty Tenure Recommendation — Samantha Whiteaker, Nursing Instructor

Dr. Gary Roberts, Vice President for Academic Affairs and Heather Seghi, Dean of Health
Professions have completed their evaluations of Samantha Whiteaker, Nursing Instructor.
The tenure recommendation is attached.

Recommendation:

The administration recommends the approval of tenure for Samantha Whiteaker,
Nursing Instructor, as presented.

KPI 5: District Population Served

50



ILLINOIS

S o e MEMORANDUM

COLLEGE

TO: Tracy Morris, President

FROM: Gary Roberts, Vice President for Academic Affairs
Heather Seghi, Dean of Health Professions
Sue Smith, Director of Nursing

DATE: January 8, 2024

SUBJECT: Tenure Recommendation for Samantha Whiteaker, Nursing

Ms. Whiteaker began her career at IVCC in August of 2021. Ms. Whiteaker holds a Bachelors of
Science degree in Nursing from St. Francis and a Masters of Science in Nursing from Lewis
University. Equating the process of becoming a registered nurse to the blooming of a flower, Ms.
Whiteaker states, “...we can appreciate the beauty and complexity of the educational journey and
celebrate each stage of growth as a vital step towards creating a flourishing garden of skilled and
empathetic nurses.” In her time at IVCC, Ms. Whiteaker has been active in a number of
extracurricular activities including, charity diaper drives, charity flower sales, and a student-led
landscaping project. In her other “free” time, Ms. Whiteaker has also been active as a faculty
advisor to the College Republicans and the Women's Health and Wellness Student Group. And
this does not even include her active participation on search committees, ACEN reaccreditation,
Assessment, Wellness, and further professional development (e.g., Excellent Online Teaching at
IVCC).

Ms. Whiteaker’s student evaluations are outstanding. It is very evident that her students admire
and appreciate the hard work she does in the classroom and outside of it. “You are the absolute
best clinical instructor and so passionate about what you do.” “You inspire me to be a better nurse
and patient advocate.” Comments such as these are further substantiated by her supervisors’
evaluations. Ms. Bonnie Campbell, former Associate Vice President for Academic Affairs writes:
“Sam impresses with her ability to work with students and facilitate their learning.” She is a
“student-centered” instructor. Dr. Roberts adds: “| enjoyed observing the level of instructor-
student engagement. Itis very evident that students have a good rapport with [her] and can freely
ask questions.”

Ms. Seghi, Ms. Smith, and Dr. Roberts are in agreement that Ms. Whiteaker meets the
requirements for tenure outlined in the IVCC Guidelines for Non-tenured Faculty Evaluation

System.

51



Recommendation for Tenure
In a Teaching Position at
Illinois Valley Community College

Faculty Being Recommended for Tenure: Samantha Whiteaker
Faculty Position: Nursing Instructor
Tenure Appointment Date: August 2024

Background:

Ms. Whiteaker was a tenured faculty member at IVCC from 2013 through 2016, before
accepting a position in another nursing program. Samantha returned to IVCC in 2021,
where she plans to stay. Ms. Whiteaker holds a Bachelor’s of Science degree in
Nursing from St. Francis and a Master’s of Science in Nursing from Lewis University.
Equating the process of becoming a registered nurse to the blooming of a flower, Ms.
Whiteaker states, “...we can appreciate the beauty and complexity of the educational
journey and celebrate each stage of growth as a vital step towards creating a
flourishing garden of skilled and empathetic nurses.”

This recommendation is based on the following:

1. Exemplary Teaching Performance
Ms. Whiteaker’s student evaluations are outstanding. It is very evident that her
students admire and appreciate the hard work she does in the classroom and
outside of it. “You are the absolute best clinical instructor and so passionate
about what youdo.” ‘“You inspire me to be a better nurse and patient
advocate.” Comments such as these are further substantiated by her
supervisors’ evaluations. Ms, Bonnie Campbell, former Associate Vice
President for Academic Affairs writes: “Sam impresses with her ability to work
with students and facilitate their learning.” She is a “student-centered”
instructor. Dr. Roberts adds: “I enjoyed observing the level of instructor-
student engagement. It is very evident that students have a good rapport with
[her] and can freely ask questions.”
Samantha utilizes active learning techniques, innovative teaching and learning
strategies such as hands-on skills and non-traditional skills assessments, as
well as collaborative teaching and learning.

2. Contributions to the College
Ms. Whiteaker has also been active as a faculty advisor to the College

Republicans and the Women's Health and Wellness Student Group. And this
does not even include her active participation on search committees, ACEN
reaccreditation, Assessment, Wellnéss, as well as nursing departmental

52



committees such as the Fair Testing Committee, and the HESI Taskforce
Commiittee, where she is the chair.

3. Contributions to the Community
In her time at IVCC, Ms. Whiteaker has been active in a number of
extracurricular activities including, charity diaper drives, charity flower sales,
and a student-led landscaping project at Abigail Women's Center.

4. Professional Involvement
Samantha has completed the following professional development
opportunities:
e IBCLC Education Courses in Progress
« Neonatal Resuscitation Advanced Provider Status

Certification Maintained
o NRP Designation Extended Through November 2025

e RNC-OB Continuing Education Courses
o RNC-OB Certification Extended Through March 2027
e BEST (Birth Emergency Skills Training) Workshop Attended
» “Excellent Online Teaching at IVCC”
o Attended Online Teaching Course in Blackboard
» Attended Assessment/ILO Course in Brightspace
o Attended Brightspace Instructor Essentials Course
» Plans to attend National Conference Summer 2024

Samantha is a member of the following organizations:

o AWHONN (Association of Women'’s Health, Obstetric and Neonatal Nurses)
e MANA (Midwives Alliance of North America)

e NLN (National League for Nursing)

e ATMCH (Association of Teachers of Maternal-Child Health)

e Sigma Theta Tau (International Honor Society for Nurses)

Samantha has maintained the following Professional Certifications:

e CNE (Certified Nurse Educator)
e RNC-OB (Registered Nurse, Certified in Inpatient Obstetrics)
e LLLL (La Leche League Leader) International Accreditation

Samantha Whiteaker has proven herself to be a dedicated and skilled instructor who
exemplifies the Mission, Vision, and Core Values of Illinois Valley Community College.
Samantha is an asset to both the Division of Health Professions, and Illinois Valley

Community College.

53



Samantha’s Tenure Portfolio can be found here: https://sapphire-hexaflexagon-
kb8a. squaregpace com/

“-—/Q,L_mf / {” ]/b 1/24/2024

Heather Seghi U Date
Dean of Health P ofessmns

AZJ de _fapsy

VPAA Narge Date
Vice President for Academic Affairs

54



Action Item 11.5

Faculty Tenure Recommendation — Emily Morgan, Mathematics Instructor

Dr. Gary Roberts, Vice President for Academic Affairs and Ron Groleau, Dean of Natural
Sciences and Business have completed their evaluations of Emily Morgan, Mathematics
Instructor. The tenure recommendation is attached.

Recommendation:

The administration recommends the approval of tenure for Emily Morgan,
Mathematics Instructor, as presented.

KPI 5: District Population Served

55



ILLINOIS

i rs MEMORANDUM

COLLEGE

TO: Tracy Morris, President

FROM: Gary Roberts, Vice President for Academic Affairs
Ron Groleau, Dean of Natural Sciences and Business

DATE: January 8, 2024

SUBJECT: Tenure Recommendation for Emily Morgan, Mathematics

Ms. Morgan began her career at IVCC during the Fall semester of 2021. Since that time, she has
been teaching both developmental mathematics as well as college-level mathematics. Ms. Morgan
holds an Associates of Science degree in Mathematics (Kishwaukee College), a Bachelors of
Science degree in Mathematics (Northern lilinois University), and a Masters of Science degree
(Aurora University), also in Mathematics. In her time at IVCC, she has participated in awide array
of institutional activities, including the Professional Development Committee, the Distance
Learning Committee, Explore IVCC, the MIMIC Fair, among many others.

Ms. Morgan's passion for teaching math resonates throughout her student evaluations. As one
student writes: “Ms. Morgan is a very good teacher; she has helped me develop my math skills in
every possible way she can.” Similarly, another student adds: “[Ms. Morgan’s] teaching style is easy
... to understand. [She] puts so much effort and little details that matter into making sure [her]
students are confident in what they are learning.” Similar comments may also be found in the in-
class evaluations conducted by Mr. Groleau, Dr. Anderson, and Dr. Roberts.

To ensure that Ms. Morgan remains current on new trends in teaching, she has also participated in
the Excellence Online Teaching Workshop, the Magna Test Correction Workshop, as well as the
various training sessions associated with Brightspace. Ms. Morgan knew early on in first grade
that she wanted to be a teacher. Her hard work and dedication have made that a reality here at

IVCC.

Mr. Groleau and Dr. Roberts are both in agreement that Ms. Morgan meets the requirements for
tenure outlined in the IVCC Guidelines for Non-tenured Faculty Evaluation System.

56



Recommendation for Tenure
In a Teaching Position at
Illinois Valley Community College

Faculty Being Recommended for Tenure: Ms. Emily Morgan
Faculty Position: Mathematics

Tenure Appointment Date: August 2024 semester

This recommendation is based on the following:
1. Exemplary Teaching Performance

Emily is an excellent instructor. Active learning, from developmental math
through Calculus, occurs in each of her classes. An effective lecture
presentation is frequently paired with solid modeling, guided practice, and
independent practice activities. Emily always comes to class prepared and her
knowledge of the subject matter is outstanding. Her approach to teaching
mathematics is unique in that Emily’s idea is to get her students to think about
the topic at hand in a new way that they may not have previously considered.
The idea is to facilitate new methods and thoughts for learning. Emily also
does well in checking for student understanding with a very good questioning
technique and group work. Students can also check their own knowledge using
the software program, MyMathLab, for many of her courses as they do their
homework and study course material. In short, Emily routinely uses multiple
teaching and assessment methods to allow her students to learn mathematics.

2. Contributions to the College
Emily has served on the following college committees:

e Professional Development Committee
« Distance Learning Committee
¢ In-Service Planning Committee

Emily is also an active participant in Division meetings as well monthly
departmental math meetings. She took alead role in the course outline update
project and was responsible for updating the MTH 0920, 1003, 1009, and 1010
outlines. Emily has also served as a presenter at the October 6, 2023 Faculty
Development Day. With her co-facilitator, Mary Smith, Emily led a

57



presentation and discussion on academic dishonesty. The presentation was
attended by multiple faculty and was very well received.

3. Contributions to the Community

Emily has been involved with the Paw Paw Lions Club Labor Day Celebration
and the many activities taking place for this event. She is also active with the
Paw Paw Little League T-ball association. Emily has two young children and
will be an eager participant in their school events and activities as they grow

older.

4. Professional Involvement

Emily is a member of the National Organization for Student Success (NOSS) and
the Illinois Mathematics Association of Community Colleges (IMACC).

Conclusion: It is with much pleasure that I recommend Ms. Emily Morgan for tenure.
She has been an excellent addition to the IVCC Mathematics department and the
Division of Natural Sciences and Business.

/Z’LM o /[§OZa4

Mr. Ron Groleau Date
Dean — Natural Sciences and Business

/4
.6. L. fdd /22
Dr, Gary Roberts Date
Vice President for Academic Affairs

58



Action Item 12

Resolution Designating the Fiscal Year

The administration requests Board authorization to designate a fiscal year. In keeping
with past practice, the recommended fiscal year would be from July 1, 2024 to June 30,
2025. The following resolution and budget calendar are therefore presented for Board
consideration.

Recommendation:

The administration recommends the Board take the following action:

1. Adopt the resolution designating the fiscal year be from July 1, 2024 to
June 30, 2025;

2. Approve the budget calendar, as presented.

KPI 6: Resource Management

59



RESOLUTION TO DESIGNATE A FISCAL YEAR

RESOLUTION

moved, seconded by ,

that the fiscal year of Illinois Valley Community College, District No. 513, Counties of LaSalle, Bureau,
Marshall, Lee, Putnam, DeKalb, Grundy, and Livingston, in the State of Illinois, be July 1, 2024 to June

30, 2025.

ADOPTED this 8% day of February, 2024.

Chair, Board of Trustees

ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Trustees

60



February 8, 2024

July 11,2024

July 15, 2024

July 15, 2024

August 15, 2024

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE

BUDGET CALENDAR —FY2025

- Resolution to Designate a Fiscal Year

- Resolution to Adopt Tentative Budget
Notice of Public Hearing

- Budget Available for Public Inspection

- Notice of Public Hearing published

- Public Hearing — 5:30 p.m.
Resolution to Adopt Budget

61



Action Item 13

Bid Request — Early Childhood Care and Services Package for Early Childhood
Education Program

The College is seeking to purchase a RealCare Baby® Early Childhood Care and Services
simulation package for the Early Childhood Education program. The package includes
baby manikins (which are similar to the adult manikins used in Nursing), software “cards”
and “kits” that provide programming for the manikins, and various support resources such
as workbooks.

Students will use the baby manikins for hands-on experiential learning, similar to how
Nursing and other programs use manikins for healthcare simulation and practice. The
software kits program the baby manikins with scenarios related to Childhood Education,
childcare, and parenting.

This purchase idea was presented to ICCB as part of the ECACE Grant “Spend-Down”
Proposal, and it was approved by ICCB ECACE Grant administrators.

The Early Childhood Care and Services Package will be fully funded by the ECACE Grant.
Estimated cost is $43,000.

Recommendation:

The administration recommends Board authorization to seek bids for an Early
Childhood Care and Services Package simulation for the Early Childhood Education
program at an estimated cost of $43,000.

KPI 3: Support for Students
KPI 6: Resource Management

62



Action Item 14

Purchase Request-Commemorative Artwork

As a part of our 100" Celebration, a request for artists to submit ideas for a piece to
celebrate the rich history of LPO and IVCC was made. Ray Paseka of Westclox Studios
presented this proposal, which is being brought forward for approval. In accordance with
Illinois Procurement Code, contracts for the services of individuals possessing a high
degree of professional skill where the ability or fitness of the individual plays an important
part are not required to go to bid. This mural will be paid utilizing Foundation Community
Technology Center designated funds, as approved by the Foundation Board of Directors.

Recommendation:

The administration recommends the Board approve the purchase of the
commemorative artwork from Westclox Studios in the amount of $35,000, as
presented.

KPI 3: Support for Students
KPI 4: Support for Employees

63



ILLINOIS

VALLEY MEMORANDUM

COLLEGE

TO: Tracy Beattie, Executive Director of the Foundation
Kathy Ross, Vice President for Business Services and Finance, Foundation Treasurer
FROM: Dr.Tracy Morris, President
DATE: January 16, 2024
SUBJECT: Request for Foundation Expenditure from CTC fund

As you are aware, the College will be celebrating 100 years of excellence in our community in
2024. As a way to commemorate this momentous event, we have sought proposals for artwork
from community artists to develop artwork for the College. Ray Paseka of Westclox Studios has
presented a concept for a mural to be installed at the entrance to Building C in the Peter Miller
Community Technology Center (CTC).

This piece will highlight the past and the future of the College and will be created off-site and
installed in late spring, upon approval. The cost, as included with this memo, is $35,000 and is a
one-time expenditure. We are requesting the use of CTC fund dollars for this commemorative
artwork. Please share this with your Foundation leadership for approval and then we will share it
with the Board of Trustees for final approval. | have included the quote, as well as a draft of the
artwork. As you can see, it highlights our past and our future and will serve as a reminder for all
who enter campus of the great history of LPO and IVCC.

Thank you for your consideration.

64



WESTCLEO2X STLDIES NG

8949 WEST 101st. PLACE PALOS HILLS, IL 60465 708 925 414

IVCC 11/15/23
815 N ORLANDO SMITH ST.

OGLESBY, IL

100 YEAR ANNIVERSARY MURAL

ESTIMATED MURAL SIZE AT 10°HIGH x 20°ACROSS.
MURAL TO BE PAINTED ON ALUMINUM SHEETING.
SHEETING TO BE ATTACHED TO WALL MOUNTED
REAR FRAMEWORK COMPOSED OF MDF COMPOSITE.
REAR FRAMWORK TO BE SEAL COATED WITH
PAINTED RUNNING OUTER EDGE LINE.

ART WORK TO BE CLEAR COATED IN SATIN FINNISH.

ESTIMATED STUDIO WORKING TIME AT 3 MONTHS.

NUMBER TO INCLUDE CONCEPT / ILLUSTRATION TIME.

NUMBER TO INCLUDE TRANSPORT AND INSTALLATION.
ESTIMATED INSTALL TIME AT ONE WORK DAY.

TOTAL PROJECT COST $3%5,00000
50% DEPOSIT FOR WORK TO BEGIN

THANK YOU

65



Action Item 15

Board Policy (approval)

Board Policy 02.07 — Auditing Classes includes an update to the policy to be reflective of
the current and past practice. This policy was shared with the Planning Committee in
January, 2024 and is being brought forward for approval due to the nature of the revisions
and changes.

Recommendation:

Approve Board Policy, as presented.

KPI 4: Support for Employees

66



Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy

Subject:  Auditing Classes Effective Date: 10/19/2010

Last Reviewed: 10/19/2010
Number: 02.07 Last Revised: 10/19/2010

It is the policy of the Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College that students may
register to audit classes subject to maximum class size limitations beginning the week the class is
scheduled to begin. Priority is given to students who are registering for credit. Students registering
for audit will pay required tuition and fees. Additionally, students may not change class
registration from audit to credit or from credit to audit once the class begins.

Board Policy 02.07 page 1

67



Action Item 16

Board Policy (approval)

Board Policy 02.15 — Honors Designation includes an update to the policy to be reflective
of the current and past practice. The substantive clarification is around language related to
commencement and graduation. Commencement refers to the ceremony and graduation
refers to the designation of completion for the degree, so clarification was provided. This
policy was shared with the Planning Committee in January, 2024 and is being brought
forward for approval due to the nature of the revisions and changes.

Recommendation:

Approve Board Policy, as presented.

KPI 4: Support for Employees

68



Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy

Subject: Honor’s Designation Effective Date: 10/19/2010
Last Reviewed: 10/19/2010
Number: 02.15 Last Revised: 10/19/2010

President's Honors

It is the policy of the Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College that the
"President's Honors" group will include students earning a term grade point average of 3.75 to 4.0
in 12 or more completed college-level hours. The 12 completed college-level semester hours
exclude non-credit courses, courses taken for audit, and developmental courses. President’s
Honors will be awarded in the Fall and Spring semesters.

Academic Honors

It is the policy of the Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College that "Academic
Honors" will include students earning a term grade point average of 3.25 or above in 6 or more
completed college-level hours. The 6 completed college-level semester hours exclude non-credit
courses, courses taken for audit, and developmental courses. Academic Honors will be awarded
in the Fall and Spring semesters.

Graduation Honors

Students earning a minimum grade point average of 3.75 in 14 or more semester hours during
each of the first three semesters will be designated as Thomas J. McCormack Scholars. Dr.
McCormack was the first director of IVCC’s predecessor. LaSalle-Peru-Oglesby Junior College.

Honors at eemmencement-graduation, which will be noted on the official transcript. will be as
follows:

A. Cum Laude - GPA of 3.25103.74
B. Magna Cum Laude - GPA of 3.75 and above
C. Summa Cum Laude - Highest GPA rank in scholarship above 3.75

D. Certificate honors will be given to students in certificate programs (24 semester
hours minimum) earning a minimum of 3.75 GPA.

Board Policy 02.13 page 1

69

Commented [GR1]: Should there be a footnote of

sorts indicating who this person 1s for the student? Just

athought.



Action Item 17

Board Policy (approval)

Board Policy 02.18 — Program Approval includes an update to the policy to be reflective
of the current and past practice. The substantive clarification is related to the additional
step that may be needed related to the Higher Learning Commission and accreditation. This
varies by program, with some programs needing approval and some programs needing
notification, as determined by the Higher Learning Commission processes. This policy was
shared with the Planning Committee in January, 2024 and is being brought forward for
approval due to the nature of the revisions and changes.

Recommendation:

Approve Board Policy, as presented.

KPI 4: Support for Employees

70



Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy

Subject: Program Approval Effective Date: 10/19/2010
Last Reviewed: 10/19/2010
Number: 02.18 Last Revised: 10/19/2010

It is the policy of the Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College to (1) assess the
need for, (2) evaluate the effectiveness of, and (3) make recommendations for the
continuance/discontinuance of Ceollege programs and services, which have been approved by the
Board of Trustees.

It is the policy of the Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College to authorize the
President or their histher designee of the College to sign any and all documents relating to
curriculum which must be forwarded to the Illinois Community College Board for approval. All
new programs and existing programs will be brought to the Board of Trustees for approval of
additions or deletions. Programs will also be submitted to the Higher Learning Commission for

appropriate action.

Board Policy 02.18 page 1

71

Commented [GR1]: in some cases, HLC also needs to
approve or at least be provided notice {for verification).
Do you want me to mention something to that effect
here?

=



Information Item 18.1

Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy

Subject: Board Compensation Effective Date: 02/25/2010
Last Reviewed: 02/25/2010
Number: 01.14 Last Revised: 02/25/2010

Members of the Board shall serve without compensation but shall be reimbursed for their
reasonable expenses incurred in connection with their service as members of the Board in
accordance with the Illinois Public Community College Act (110 ILCS 805/3-7).

Board Policy 01.14 page 1

72



Information Item 18.2

Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy

Subject: Academic Probation/Dismissal Effective Date: 10/19/2010
Last Reviewed: 10/19/2010
Number: 02.03 Last Revised: 10/19/2010

It is the policy of the Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College that a student on
academic probation may not enroll for more than fifteen (15) credit hours and may be subject to
academic dismissal if the cumulative grade point average is not raised in subsequent semesters.

A student on academic dismissal may register for up to six (6) hours in summer session in an
attempt to improve theirkis/her grade point average. A student who is academically dismissed may,
after one regular semester, petition to the Vice President for Student Services for re-admission.
Readmission should not be assumed to be automatic, nor without restrictions, if granted by the
Vice President for Student Services.

Board Policy 02.03 page 1

73



Information Item 18.3

Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy

Subject: Code of Conduct Effective Date: 10/19/2010
Last Reviewed: 10/19/2010
Number: 02.09 Last Revised: 10/19/2010

It is the policy of the Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College that a
comprehensive Sstudent Code of Conduct shall be published annually.

Board Policy 02.09 page 1

74



Information Item 18.4

[linois Valley Community College Board Policy

Subject:  Credit Hour Effective Date: 04/14/2016

Last Reviewed: 04/14/2016

Number: 02.10 Last Revised: 04/14/2016

It is the policy of the Board of Trustees that a credit hour represents the student work required to
demonstrate achievement of defined learning outcomes to be accomplished in fifty minutes of
direct instruction and two hours of out-of-class work each week for the equivalent of a
weekfifteen-week semester. Courses and academic activities where direct instruction is not the
primary mode of learning, such as online and hybrid courses comprise an equivalent amount of
course related work (three hours per week for fifteen weeks) in any combination of direct
instruction and out-of-class activities except as follows: lab instruction, studio work, and clinical
work (minimum of two hours per week for fifteen weeks) and internships/practica (up to 5 hours
per week for fifteen weeks).

Board Policy 02.10 page 1

75



Information Item 18.5

Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy

Subject: Pass/Fail Grading Effective Date: 10/19/2010
Last Reviewed: 10/19/2010
Number: 02.17 Last Revised: 10/19/2010

It is the policy of the Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College that students
enrolling in certain designated courses may elect a pass/fail option. Students electing this option
must declare their intent at the time of registration. Subsequent changes are not permitted. No more
than 20 percent of semester hours earned in pass/fail courses ar¢ applicable to a degree or toward
a certificate offered by the College.

Board Policy 02.17 page 1

76



Information Item 18.6

Fall 2023 Graduation

There were 196 graduating students earning a total of 251 degrees and certificates in the
following areas:

23 Associates in Arts degree

13 Associate in Science degree

12 Associate in Applied Science degree
6 Associate in General Studies degree
197  Certificates of Completion

By comparison, in Fall 2022, we graduated 158 students with a total of 190 degrees and
certificates.

77



Information Item 18.7

RECOMMENDED FOR STAFF APPOINTMENT

FISCAL YEAR 2024
Position To Be Filled: Number of Number of Applicants
Help Desk Support Technician Applicants: 6 Interviewed: 6

Information Technology Services

Applicants Interviewed By:

Joel Kozlick, IT Support Lead

Jacob Taylor, IT Infrastructure Operations Engineer

Michelle Story, Faculty

Ellen Evancheck, Instructional Technology Systems Coordinator

Applicant Recommended:  Kaitlyn Hickey

Educational Preparation:
e lllinois Valley Community College, Oglesby, IL - Area of Study: Computer Science
e Serena High School, Serena, IL - Diploma

Experience:
¢ lllinois Valley Community College, Oglesby, IL - IT Student Worker (Federal Work Study)

e Speedway LLC, Oglesby, IL - Lead Assistant Store Manager
¢ Dollar Tree, Peru, IL - Operations Manager

This candidate is being recommended for employment for the following reasons:

1. Asacurrent student worker in the Information Technology Services Department, this
candidate has effectively demonstrated they are capable of the job requirements and will
be able to fulfill this role with little to no additional training required.

2. Possesses a strong level of confidence and outgoing mindset.
3. Strong customer service background.

Recommended Salary: $19.20/hour Effective Date: 01/16/2024

Mary Beth Herron
Director of Human Resources

78



Information Item 18.3

ILLINOIS VALLEY

COMMUNITY COLLEGE

January 29, 2024

illinois Community College Trustees Association
401 E. Capitol, Suite 200

Springfield, IL 62701-1711

Re: 2024 Distinguished Alumnus Award

Dear ICCTA Awards Committee,

The lllinois Valley Community College Board of Trustees is pleased to recommend John A. "Jack"
Schibrowsky, PhD of Nevada for the ICCTA Distinguished Alumnus Award.

Dr. Schibrowsky is currently a Professor in the Department of Marketing and International Business at the
University of Nevada, Las Vegas. Dr. Schibrowsky has held faculty positions at University of Wisconsin-
Whitewater, University of Northern lowa, and a Teaching Assistant position at University of Wisconsin-
Madison. He earned a PhD in Business from the University of Wisconsin-Madison, MBA from University
of Northern lowa, Bachelor of Science from University of Wisconsin-Superior, and an Associate of Arts
from lllinois Valley Community College.

Dr. Schibrowsky has received numerous awards for teaching, service, and scholarship. He has produced
more than 155 intellectual contributions over the past 20 years, including 50 major publications. This is
an average of more than 6 intellectual contributions per year. Dr. Schibrowsky received a total of seven
national research awards over the past ten years and has presented close to 100 times across the United
States as a way of contributing to his profession. He has served as a reviewer and has been involved in his
local community, including being selected as a volunteer of the month on multiple occasions.

The IVCC Board of Trustees wholeheartedly recommends Dr. John A. "Jack" Schibrowsky for the 2024
Distinguished Alumnus Award.

Sincerely,

Everett Solon

Board Chair, lllinois Valley Community College

79



Information Item 18.9

ILLINOIS VALLEY

COMMUNITY COLLEGE

January 29, 2024

Illinois Community College Trustees Association
401 E. Capitol, Suite 200

Springfield, IL62701-1711

Re: 2024 Ethical Leadership Award

Dear ICCTA Awards Committee,

The lllinois Valley Community College Board of Trustees is pleased to recommend Fran Brolley of Plainfield for the ICCTA
Gary W. Davis Ethical Leadership award. Fran served the College for 34 years in a variety of roles prior to retirement in 2023.
He then entered his second career as the CEO of the Starved Rock Country Community Foundation (SRCCF). The SRCCF is a
501(c)3 non-profit organization dedicated to improving and maintaining the quality of life for residents in and around LaSalle,
Bureau and Putnam County with a mission to “connect people who care to causes that matter.”

Throughout his career, Fran always demonstrated the highest level of commitment, trustworthiness, and advocacy for the
College and students. Fran started his career in the Communications Department and ultimately advanced to the Executive
Director of Community Relations and Development. He played a vital role in the $2.1 million capital campaign for the
Community Technaology Center and in a scholarship campaign that raised over $700,000. In total, he helped raise over $4
million in private funding, all which had a positive impact for our students. Fran genuinely connects with donors and the
community through his lifelong association with the College and commitment to the communities we serve.

Fran also oversaw significant growth in the number of scholarships awarded. In his final year at the college, more than
$400,000 was awarded to 200+ students. Nearly 150 scholarships were added during Fran’s time in the Foundation. In
addition, Fran was the primary communications contact for the College. He always was open with the local media and shared
the stories of the College in a positive manner and handled difficult situations with integrity and open communication. Fran
is known for maintaining excellent rapport with donors, colleagues, constituents, and the media, while also building and
maintaining relationships with government representatives.

In the community, Fran serves as Board President for Lighted Way. During his time on the board, he helped secure a new
home for Lighted Way through the purchase of a former nursing home. The 30,000-square-foot building opened in 2023.

The IVCC Board of Trustees wholeheartedly recommends Fran Brolley for the 2024 Gary W. Davis Ethical Leadership award.
Fran has embodied commitment, ethical decision-making, and compassion in all of his roles and we are proud to support
him for this award.

Sincerely,

Everett Solon

Board Chair, lllinois Valley Community College

80



Information Item 18.10

ILLINOIS VALLEY

COMMUNITY COLLEGE

January 29, 2024

Illinois Community College Trustees Association
401 E. Capitol, Suite 200
Springfield, IL 62701-1711

Re: 2024 Distinguished Alumnus Award

Dear ICCTA Awards Committee,

The Illinois Valley Community College Board of Trustees is pleased to recommend Elizabeth “Libby” Boyles
of Princeton for the 2024 Gigi Campbell Student Trustee Excellence Scholarship. Libby has done a
tremendous job in her role as the Student Trustee, in addition to her other involvement on-campus as a
student athlete and Student Ambassador. She has taken every available opportunity to push herself
outside of her comfort zone and she has had a positive impact in so many ways.

In her role as the Student Trustee, Libby set her personal goal for the year to improve communication
with the students. She holds office hours for two hours each week in the Student Government Office,
which is conveniently located in a high traffic area of the campus. She also has worked to develop engaging
social media posts in order to improve both number of impressions and engagement on social media
platforms for the student newspaper. As the Student Trustee, Libby is the first Trustee to do a monthly
presentation for the Board in a number of years. She shares updates on campus activities and updated
information related to athletics. Libby represents the college as a student athlete in two sports, volleyball
and softball. Last year, she received the Arrowhead Conference Academic Excellence Award for both

sports.

Libby has excelled during her time at IVCC and has emerged as a stronger leader and communicator. The
IVCC Board of Trustees wholeheartedly recommends Elizabeth “Libby” Boyles for the 2024 Gigi Campbell
Award.

Sincerely,

Everett Solon

Board Chair, lllinois Valley Community College

81



Information Item 18.11

ILLINOIS VALLEY

COMMUNITY COLLEGE

January 31, 2024

lllinois Community College Trustees Association
401 E. Capitol, Suite 200
Springfield, IL 62701-1711

Re: 2024 Pacesetter Award

Dear ICCTA Awards Committee,

The lllinois Valley Community College Board of Trustees is pleased to recommend Martha Hoffman
Kerestes for the ICCTA Pacesetter Award.

Martha comes from a family where all four siblings attended IVCC and she certainly made the most of her
time at IVCC. During her time at IVCC, she earned a 4.0 grade point average and was the Editor of the
student newspaper, the IV Leader. During her time in this role, the newspaper received first place in the
General Excellence Division 2 of the lllinois Community College Journalism Association.

Martha’s time at IVCC provided her the foundation and leadership experience to go on to become an
intern at the National FFA Convention and Expo in 2018, Assistant Editor and Page designer for the Dutch
Belted Bulletin, all while she was still in college. After graduating from Northern lllinois University in
December 2019 with a degree in journalism, she became a freelance writer and Contributing Editor for
Graze Magazine, a role she has held since 2019. She also serves as the Marketing and Communications
Manager for Bestyet A.l. Sires.

The IVCC Board of Trustees wholeheartedly recommends Martha Hoffman Kerestes for the 2024
Pacesetter Award. Martha exemplifies the positive attitude, hustle and work ethic that lead to success
and we are proud to support her for this award.

Sincerely,

Everett Solon

Board Chair, lllinois Valley Community College

82



Information Item 18.12

Audit Presentation - Sikich

Our Auditors, Sikich, LLP, have completed the FY2023 Audit. It will be presented at the
Audit/Finance Committee Meeting and was provided to all Trustees.

83



Information Item 18.13

Financial Plan 2025-2027

The 2025-2027 Financial Plan was presented at the Audit/Finance Committee Meeting
and was provided to all Trustees.

84



Information Item 18.14

ILLINOIS VALLEY Business Services and Finance

Phone: (815) 224-0419
COMMUNITY COLLEGE Fax: (815) -0294

24 January 2024

Tim Gibson

IGEN Network

c/o Joliet Junior College
1215 Houbolt Road
Joliet, IL 60431

Re: Project #51301-LC-241-RE

Dear Tim and IGEN Admin Team,

Illinois Valley Community College is currently in the process of updating our Master Plan and recently
received feedback from our architects that indicates there will most likely be major renovation to Building J.
This is the building previously identified as the location of the solar array that was to be constructed using
the funding awarded to us in the competitive grant # 51301-LC-241-RE. While we very much appreciate
being selected for these funds, at this time, we do not feel it is financially responsible to move forward with
this project. We respectfully ask you to rescind this award and re-allocate the funds to other member
colleges who have projects that would be able to be completed more effectively and responsibly at this time.

Sincerely,

Kathy Ross
Vice President for Business Services and Finance

Illinois Valley Community College

815 North Orlando Smith Rd. | Oglesby, lllinois 61348 | www.ivcc.edu

85



Information Item 18.15

ILLINOIS VALLEY

COMMUNITY COLLEGE

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: Dr. Tracy Morris, President

DATE: January 30, 2024

SUBIJECT: Recommendation for Courses at Sheridan Correctional Center

The lllinois Department of Corrections {IDOC) is seeking to enter into contract negotiations with providers
of college coursework in the State of lllinois in the upcoming year (effective July 1%). Lake Land College
provides the bulk of services to IDOC across the state, including at Sheridan Correctional Center.

Colleges with a correctional institution in their home district do have the right of first refusal. In 2011, the
College made the decision to stop offering classes, due to the cost of courses, the challenges in staffing,
and the significant administrative work required for programs. Lake Land has provided courses for
Sheridan since the time of IVCC’s withdrawal.

As the IDOC contracts come up for renewal, the ICCB is gauging interest in home colleges providing
services in their district, to provide IDOC plenty of time to negotiate/renegotiate contracts, and to be able
to continue services without interruption, which includes considerations of employee transitions,
program continuity, etc. if a provider changes. It is the recommendation of administration that Lake Land
College continue offering courses to Sheridan Correctional Center.

In addition, the Northwestern Prison Education Program has been a partnership between Stateville
Correctional Center, Oakton College, and Northwestern University. This successful program allows
students at Stateville Correctional Center to seek a Bachelor of Science degree with a major in social
sciences, taking a full course load all four quarters of each academic year. Completion of degrees typically
takes four to five years. Oakton and Northwestern have developed a plan and articulation for this program
through years of collaboration. Due to the conditions of Stateville Correctional Center, there is
consideration to move this program to Sheridan Correctional Center. If this is approved, it is the
recommendation that Oakton College continue offering this program at Sheridan Correctional Center.

815 North Orlando Smith Road | Oglesby, lllinois 61348 | www.ivcc.edu

86



Information Item 18.16

ILLINOIS VALLEY

COMMUNITY COLLEGE

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: Dr. Tracy Morris, President
DATE: January 30, 2024
SUBIJECT: CNC Vertical Mill

In 2013, IVCC Alumnus Dan Janka coordinated for the College to receive a Vertical Machining Center from
Fives Cincinnati/Giddings and Lewis to support the programs in the Peter Miller Community Technology
Center. The cost of the equipment was approximately $300,000 and was initially a foundational piece of
the manufacturing area of the CTC.

Since that time, the equipment is no longer viable and has prevented the program from making
modifications to the layout of the lab, due to the size of the equipment. In the current format, students
are not able to utilize this equipment in this area because it is a piece of production equipment. The
changeovers take considerable effort for tooling, and the tooling is very expensive due to the size. In
industry, it would be used to create the same piece over and over for a full shift or more. Smaller
equipment gives students opportunities to practice changeovers and design.

We have contacted local companies to determine if there were other entities that would like to receive
this equipment for use. It is the intent of the administration to proceed with donating or disposing of this
equipment. This will allow for further expansion within the manufacturing area with equipment that is
better for student learning and experience.

815 North Orlando Smith Road | Oglesby, lllinois 61348 | www.ivcc.edu

87



Information Item 18.17

ILLINOIS VALLEY
COMMUNITY COLLEGE
Memorandum
To: Dr. Tracy Morris, President
From: Mark Grzybowski, Vice President for Student Services M G
Date: January 30, 2024
Subject: Saluki Step Ahead Online Program Update

In 2021, Southern lllinois University Carbondale entered into an intergovernmental agreement
with the lllinois Community College Board to create partnerships with their Saiuki Step Ahead

Online Program.

Recently, SIUC followed up with sub-agreements specific to each community college. As such,
enclosed is the SIUC-IVCC sub-agreement related to the Saluki Step Ahead Online Program. This
program is a fantastic option for our students who seek to complete a Bachelor’s Degree at SIUC.

88



SALUKI STEP AHEAD ONLINE PROGRAM

For Accounting, Business Administration, Criminology & Criminal Justice, Early
Childhood Education, Elementary Education, Health Care Management, History,
Industrial Management and Applied Engineering, Information Technology, Nursing
(RN to BSN), Psychology, and Radiologic Sciences

SUBAGREEMENT

This Subagreement is entered into this first day of February, 2024 by and between Illinois Valley
Community College, a member of the Illinois Community College System (“ICCS”), and The
Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University, a body politic and corporate of the State of
Illinois, by and on behalf of Southern Illinois University Carbondale (SIUC). SIUC and College
may hereafter be referred to individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.

WHEREAS, SIUC and the Illinois Community College Board have entered into an
Intergovernmental Agreement (“Agreement”) regarding SIUC’s Saluki Step Ahead Online

Program and access to that program by ICCS colleges;

WHEREAS, the Agreement provides in relevant part that students and graduates of ICCS
colleges that have entered into a subagreement with SIUC in which the college agrees to be
bound by the terms and conditions of the Agreement will receive automatic admission to SIUC’s
online Accounting, Business Administration, Criminology & Criminal Justice, Early Childhood
Education, Elementary Education, Health Care Management, History, Industrial Management
and Applied Engineering, Information Technology, Nursing (RN to BSN), Psychology, and
Radiologic Sciences programs pursuant to the Saluki Step Ahead Online program (“SSAO

Program”);

WHEREAS, College is a member of ICCS, desires that its students have access to the SSAO
Program, and is ready, willing and able to comply with the terms of the Agreement;

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. College covenants and agrees to comply with the terms and conditions of the Agreement,
which to the extent they are applicable to College or this Subagreement are incorporated
by reference as though fully stated herein.

9. The term of this Subagreement shall commence on the Effective Date and continue
through the expiration or termination of the Agreement. In the event the Agreement is
renewed or extended, this Subagreement shall be renewed or extended, as applicable, for
the same amount of time. This Subagreement may be terminated by either Party,
without or without cause, upon sixty days prior written notice.

3. For purposes of administration and implementation of this and for purposes of notice,
the Parties primary contacts are as follows:

Page1o0f2

89



STUC Contact:

Josi Rawls

Associate Director for Transfer Relations
Undergraduate Admissions

Student Services Building — MC 4710
Southern Illincis University

1263 Lincoln Drive

Carbondale, IL 62901

Phone: 618/453-2992

Fax: 618/453-4609

josi.rawls« siu.edu

IVCC Contact:

Mark Grzybowski

Vice President for Student Services
Illinois Valley Community College
815 N Orlando Smith St

Olgesby, 1L 61348

Phone: 815/224-0393
mark_rzybowskivivec.edu

4. This Subagreement represents the entire agreement of the Parties regarding the subject
matter hereof and supersedes all prior agreements or understandings, oral or written,
regarding same. Except as otherwise expressly stated herein, this Subagreement may be
amended only by further written instrument signed by the authorized representative(s) of

each Party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the each of the Parties has signed this Agreement by its duly

authorized representative.

IHinois Valley Community College

Dr. Tracy Morris

President

Date

The Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University

Dr. Austin A. Lane
Chancellor

Southern Illinois University Carbondale

90

Date

Page 2 0f2



Information Item 18.18

PARTNERSHIP FOR
COLLEGE COMPLETION

Advancing Equity in Higher Education

Hlinois Developmental Education Equity in Action {IDEAA) Network
College Memorandum of Understanding
2023-2025

This document constitutes a memorandum of understanding between the Partnership for
College Completion (PCC) and [Name of College] for participation in the Developmental
Education Reform Act (DERA) Implementation Community of Practice,

Background
The Partnership for College Completion {PCC) is a nonprofit organization founded in 2016 to

significantly increase equity in college degree completion across the diverse landscape of
lifinois’ postsecondary institutions. PCC provides leadership, resources, and a systems level
approach to higher education practice and policy for colleges and universities to implement
evidence-based approaches that support college completion and close equity gaps on their
campuses. The mission of the PCC is to catalyze and champion policies, systems, and practices
that ensure all students in the region — particularly low-income students, first generation college
goers, African-American and Latino students — graduate from coliege and achieve their career
aspirations. The PCC, through relationships with critical stakeholders in higher education,
focuses its efforts in three primary areas - technical support to colleges and universities, public
policy, and public awareness.

With support from the Illinois Community College Board (ICCB) and Ascendium Education
Group, PCC is launching a two year cohort-based opportunity beginning the Fall 2023 which
provides technical assistance and expert guidance to a diverse group of community colleges and
universities that have committed to reforming developmental education using a co-requisite
model. Specifically, the institutions will formalize a cross-functional team to engage in a series of
quarterly online modular workshops, an annual in-person convening, and ongoing consultation
with a coach offered by PCC for the next two years. In addition, PCC will offer examples of
successful co-requisite models nationally and locally, alignment of development education
reform into state-wide equity plans, plus blogs to highlight the successes of illinois community
colleges. PCC is committed to supporting up to 20 community colleges and universities within
the two year cohort.

91



PARTNERSHIP FOR =
COLLEGE COMPLETION

Advancing Equity in Higher Education

Commitment from PCC
1. (ollaborate with external consultants and state agencies to offer a series of coaching to

2

build institutional capacity for effective implementation of multi-year DERA plans.

Convene institutional partners, provide learning opportunities, and hear from
postsecondary leaders and practitioners across the state and country who are deploying
reforms with success.

Create 4 repository for research, resources, learning, evidence-based practices and sharing
local efforts to develop, implement and scale DERA Plans, policies & practices.

Create opportunities for longer-term engagement in scaling DERA plans that yield improved
student outcomes,

Integration of developmental education reform initiatives into the institution’s Equity Plans
per HB5464.

College or University Commitments

10.

Enter a partnership with PCC to specifically implement the institution's co-requisite model
of reform in compliance with the Developmental Education Reform Act (HB2170) legislation
from Fall 2023 through Spring 2025.

Share institutional data regarding student gateway course completion and other data
relevant to course placement in developmental English and Math courses.

Dedicate a core team to this effort that will steer the work internally at the institution and
attend PCC-sponsored convenings and events designed to catalyze the scaling of
co-requisite implementation. Team members typically include the president, provost,
English and Math faculty members, and the most senior member of institutional research,
student affairs, enroliment management, and others at the discretion of campus leadership;
however, team membership is ultimately left up to the college/university.

Attend a virtual kickoff of the cohort (tentatively on December 14, 2023)

Attend an annual regional convening (in person or virtual) with topic-driven sessions led by
subject matter experts advancing developmental education reform.

Ensure that faculty and staff who serve on the institutional core team are afforded release
time to participate as needed.

Completion of a needs assessment to determine institutional readiness for scalable
implementation of the DERA plan.

Cooperation with research and evaluation partners throughout engagement with PCC.
Submit an annual report with gualitative and quantitative outcome data tracking key

milestones.
Write and submit a blog detailing key aspects of your institution’s DERA strategies for the

PCC website,

92




PARTNERSHIP FOR
COLLEGE COMPLETION

Advancing Equity in Higher Education

Benefits for Network Partners

1. Acress to subject matter experts throughout the state and country dedicated to
advancing equity and inclusion in student success outcomes

2. Connection with PCC’s talented team of coaches to guide you and your teams through
comprehensive equity planning

3. Engage with peer institutions and crowdsource solutions to various challenges affecting
progress or scalability of your DERA plans

4. Gain access to guahity professional development content that strengthens your campus
capacity to deliver holistic results

5. Accountability to achieving your institutional goals and measuring progress through
annual report process

6. Ability to inform and influence public policymakers

7. Amplify perspectives of students, administrators, and faculty leading transformation
through coordinated public awareness campaigns

Acknowledged:
January 25, 2024
Cotlege/University President Signature Date

[ - . January 25, 2024
./4.&{14/ FF L8 Nl

College, J“umve/rmy teod Stgnatu ' / Date
/
,/gx A / pl Ca” é"u / > j’ﬂv Ag'}}/
PCC Sr Director af College & University Parmerships Signature /Date

93



Information Item 18.19

Jo1onusul awiy-yed e se paAojdwa Sulewal UosiO [2eYIRY,

:o_wmcm_.mwm_ +7202°'60°20 A \ #202°'STI0 1d $2921N022Y w:_:_mw._ JUe3SsISSy Jojua)) JUDWISSISSY jeeyaey \COm_O
SNAIDS
:O_um:m_mmm ¥Z0C¢ 8T TC A \ $Z0Z'8T°'T0 14 >mo_o:_._uw._. co_um:tot.__ um>_m:< \ ._wEEm._mo._n_ sawer J_uom
uoseay| aA3Y3 | (N) /(A) 9|14 uo 2137 / awn-jnJ(Ld) NOISIAIG / ININLHYd3a NOILISOd JNYN
9J130N paAISIaY YH 21eq| dwn-Med(ld) SNLVLS

v¢-qo4-8
SNOLLYYVd3S 41V.1S ADdTTO0D ALINNWWOD
NOILVWYO4NI 404 SN3LI

AHTIVA SIONI'TII

94



ILLINOIS VALLEY

COMMUNITY COLLEGE

College Core Values
Achieving Excellence through our Core Values (acronym is [-CARE)
Integrity
Compassion
Accountability
Respect
Equity

Vision Statement

Illinois Valley Community College will foster personal and professional
growth and well-being for our students and community through growing
programs, updated facilities, and educational innovation.

Mission Statement

Illinois Valley Community College is dedicated to creating opportunities for
students and our community by providing access to affordable,
high-quality higher education and life-long learning.

Approved by the Board (01-18-2024)





